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AUDITORS' REPORT

To the shareholders of
of als Ventspils nafta

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of als Ventspils nafta (a joint stock company
registered in the Republic of Latvia) and its subsidiaries (the Group) for the year ended 31 December 2004. We have
also audited the financial statements of als Ventspils nafta (the Parent company) for the year ended 31 December 2004.
The financial statements, set out on pages 5 through 59, comprise the balance sheet, the statements of income, cash
flows and changes in equity and the related notes. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Parent
company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing issued by the International Federation of
Accountants. Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above give a true and fair view of the financial position of Group and
Parent company as of 31 December 2004, and the results of the Group’s and the Parent company's operations and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw your attention to the fact that the afs Ventspils nafta subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans
since 2002 has incurred substantial losses due to physical losses of oil products and due to the decision of AK
Transneft to suspend transportation of crude oil to Ventspils terminal through the SIA LatRosTrans pipeline as further
described in Note 14. The management and the Council of SIA LatRosTrans and also als Ventspils nafta believe that
the current situation is temporary and is taking actions aimed at renewing the delivery of crude oil to Ventspils terminal
and decreasing physical losses and related tax consequences. Consequently, no adjustment for impairment of the
above fixed assets has been recorded as at 31 December 2004. Should the current situation become permanent and

alternative use of the pipeline can not be established, an impairment adjustment would have to be recorded in the future
in the financial statements of the SIA LatRosTrans.

Emst & Young Baltic SIA
License No. 17
— T = R S R
o
Per Maller Diana Krigjane
Personal ID code: 060567-14676 Personal |10 code: 250873-12964
Member of the Board Latvian Sworn Auditor

Certificate No. 124

Riga, 19 May 2005

A Member of Emst & Young Global
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Management and consolidated report
Dear shareholders, clients and cooperation partners,

The year 2004 for the joint stock company Ventspils nafla was the starting point for efficient operating under the new and propery
arranged management system of the Group. It is the result of improvement of a's Ventspils nafta management system commenced in
2003 in line with the basic principles of a multi-branch group of companies, encompassing the segregation of the holding companies'
functions and dividing all the entities belonging to a's Ventspils nafta Group by their respective business segments,

The financial results of a/s Ventspils nafta for the year 2004 evidence that the Group has succeeded in reaching its aims: the financial
and economic results of afs Venispils nafta Group for the reperting period reach and, in some aspects, even exceed the forecasted

amaunts. In terms of the financial and economic results, als Ventspils nafta is one of the most stable leading enterprises among groups
of companies in Latvia,

Pursuant to the consolidated annual report of als Ventspils mafta for the year ended 31 December 2004 prepared in accordance with
applicable laws of the Republic of Latvia and generally accepted accounting policies, the net turnover of als Venispils nafta Group for
the reporting period reached LVL 55.95 million, with profit after taxes amounting to LWL 13.86 million. Pursuant to the consolidated
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2004 presented in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the net

turnaver of als Ventspils nafta Group for the reporting period reached LVL 55.95 million, with profit after taxes amounting to LVL 19.21
million.

The consolidated annual report of als Ventspils naffa for the year ended 31 December 2004 comprises reclassification and revaluation
of the investment in afs Latvijas kugnieciba, an associated entity to als Ventspils nafta. The revaluation has been performed, based on
the activity plan and the budget of als Ventspils naffa for the reporting period approved by the general shareholders’ meeting of afs
Ventspils nafta in 2004, which defined the necessity of reclassification of afs Ventspils nafta investment in als Latvijas kugnieciba
(49.84%). Initially, the investment of a's Venispils nafta was stated as a current asset, but starting from 2004, it has been reclassified to
nen-current investments, based on the actual situation,

After completion of als Ventspils nafta restructuring process commenced in 2003, the Group’s operations and investment plans were
optimized thus facilitating creation of an added value to each business entity and the Group in general, as well as resulting in the
respective increase of the management capacity in each particular entity, improvement of the transparency of finance matters and
efficient consumption of resources,

In the beginning of the reporiing period, the shareholders of a/s Ventspils nafa elected Olga Pétersone as Chairperson of the Board.
Ms. P&lersone has an extensive experience in the management of large-scale companies. Her main objective is an ongoing increase of
the value of a's Ventspils nafta Group.

In 2004, a/s Ventspils nafa Group continued operating in the areas of crude oil and oil products transit, printing, publishing and real
estate management.

In 2004, SIA Ventspils nafta terminals demonstrated stability of operations, regardless of impairment of rights and opportunities of SIA
Ventspils nafta terminals to freely compete at the fransit market and accept oil fransported via pipelines due to extemal circumstances
beyond the company's confrol. In 2004, all cargoes totaling 8.4 million tons were delivered only by railway. Compared to 2002, when oil
was transported in Ventspils direction also via pipelines, the amount of cargoes delivered by railway to the terminal in 2004 increased by
1.8 million tons or 28%. The net turnover of SIA Vientspils nafta terminals for the reporting period reached LWL 16 million.

With the view to ensure atiraction of additional cargoes, in 2004 SIA Ventspils nafta ferminals continued increasing the volume of petrol
reloading by improving technologies and offering customers a new kind of service - petrol loading into tankers having a deadweight up to
100 thousand tons. Currently, this kind of service is not offered by either terminal in the eastern region of the Baltic Sea.

For the aforementioned reasons, the volume of petrol reloading by SIA Venispils nafta terminals for the reporting period increased by
0.7 million tons, compared to 2003, and even by 1.2 million tons, compared to 2002. After the year-end, during the first months of 2005,
the volume of petrol reloading by SIA Ventspils nafia terminéls reached the highest level ever recorded by the company.
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Management and consolidated report (cont'd)

One of the most important events for SIA Ventspils nafta terminals in 2004 was launching of a new railway elevation to be used for
acceptance of crude oil and oil products. This is the fourth railway elevation in the territory of SIA Ventspils nafta terminals, thus allowing
optimization of the terminal's capacilies, diversification of the assortment of cargoes that may be reloaded by the company and
prevention of idle time due to the increase in cargo volumes delivered by railway. The new elevation meets the latest modern technology
requirements, its annual capacity being 4.5 million tons of crude oil or 5.5 million tons of diesel fuel. Investments in the construction of
the elevation reached almost LVL 13 million. In 2004, the Republic of Latvia Ministry of Envirenment declared the elevation to be the
most environment-friendly facility in the country.

In 2004, SIA Ventspils nafta terminals repeatedly received ceriificates on its compliance with the requirements of 150 (Infernational
Standards Crganization) 9001:2000 and 1400:1938,

During the reporting period, SIA LatRosTrans, the operator and owner of oil and oil products pipelines in Latvia, recorded a substantial
growth of the volumes of transported diesel fuel. In 2004, 5.7 million tons of diesel fuel were transported via the main pipeline of SIA

LatRosTrans to the Ventspils port, thus exceeding the result of 2003 by 1.1 million tons. The net tumover of SIA LatRosTrans for the
reporting period amounted to LVL 13.6 million.

With the view of future increase of diesel fuel transportation volumes, SIA LatRosTrans in 2004 implemented a stage of modernization of
the main pipeline by constructing a 10 km long looping.

During the reporting period, SIA LatRosTrans continued active operations aimed at elimination of excess physical losses of oil products
in the result of unautherized actions by infarming and involving governmental bodies for the purpose of solving this issue. According to
the belief expressed by the management of SIA LatRosTrans and afs Ventspils nafta, in 2004 the court instances decided in favor of SIA
LatRosTrans and its claim regarding tax surcharges for the aforementioned physical losses was met. Based on the court decisions, SIA
LatRosTrans will be refunded laxes unreasonably charged for 2001, 2002 and 2003,

One of the measures taken by SlA LatRosTrans during the reporting year for the purpose of elimination of excess physical losses of ol
products caused by unauthorized actions was construction of a new and up-fo-date oil products accounting point allowing a more
accurate oil products piping control, It is deemed to be a significant element for accounting and control of oil products fransit
Investments in the construction of the accounting point reached almost LVL 3 million.

In the end of the reporting pericd, Sergejs Aleksandrovs was elected General Director and Board Member for SIA LatRosTrans. Mr.
Aleksandrovs has an extensive experience and understanding about the management of the company as he has been working in this
industry for more than 30 years.

The year 2004 for afs Preses nams was a period of dynamic changes and development. During the reporting period, the company
continued optimizing its organizational and functional structure. The restructuring is expecied fo be completed in 2008, when production
aquipment will be moved from the cenire of Riga to a more favorable location - two new production faciliies on the outskirts of Riga.

In 2004, the manifold range of printing services offered by a/s Preses nams, as well as the expedient geographic disposition of the
market enabled the company to maintain and strengthen its position in the segment of printing of books, periodicals and packaging both
in the domestic and international market. According to the Latvian Prinfing Association, a/s Preses nams has been the major printing
enterprise in Latvia and in the Balfic States over the last years.

The total turnover of a’s Preses nams in 2004 reached LVL 19.2 million. Income from printing services amount to 98.5% of the
company’s turnover, or LVL 18.9 million, including 8% of services rendered to Latvian customers and 32% representing exports, During
the reporting period, a's Preses nams continued upgrading its technical facilities and investing in advanced technologies. In the result of

‘considerable investments in pre-printing processes made in 2004, a's Preses nams will be able lo substantially increase the speed and
accuracy of the order fulfillment and curtail production costs.

In the reporting period, Uldis Ronis was elected Chairman of the Board for a/s Preses nams. Mr. Ronis has experience in managing

other companies. His core objective is to ensure strengthening of the market share acquired by afs Preses nams and ongoing
development of the company.
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Management and consolidated report (cont'd)

Als Latvijas kugnieciba, an associated entity to als Ventspils nafta, succeeded in benefiting from the favorable market situation during
the reporting period and derived profit in the amount of LVL 38.5 million after taxes due to circumstances beyond the management's
control. A major portion of income of a/s Lafvijas kugnieciba Group comprises reversal of impairment of afs Latvijas kugrieciba fleet of
vessels stated in prior years, thus increasing the profit for the previous year by LVL 23 million.

Risk diversification policy exercised by a/s Ventspils nafta over a past few years has resulted in a number of liquid financial investments
in several real estate objects in Riga (villa Maikapara nams, Preses nams building, the office building at Palasta Street in the Oid town of
Riga), Jarmala (former health resort Rigas iicis), Ventspils and other regions (conference and recreation centre Lejastiezumi near the
Usmas lake). The favorable developments in the real estate market characterized by ongoing price rise over the previous years and the
reporting period have resulted in continuous growth of the market value of the real estate owned by a/s Venispils nafta, thus ensuring
a's Ventspils nafta a stable return on investment, and hence, an additional income reserve.

The successful financial results of als Venispils nafta Group reached after the year-end, for the first quarter of the year 2005,
unequivocally demonstrate stability and profitability of a/s Venispils nafta. The net turnover and profit of als Ventspils nafta Group for the
first three months of 2005 substantially exceed the forecasted figures and the corresponding results for 2004. These results allow
drawing & conclusion that the correct planning and active implementation of the plans would sooner or later be reflected in the financial
results, and a/s Ventspils nafta may face the future with a reasonable hope.

According to the Republic of Latvia Law on Financial Statements of Companies, the profit for 2004 cannot be distributed in dividends,

but instead should be transferred to restricied reserves. Accordingly, the management of als Ventspils nafta suggests to transfer profit
for 2004 o resiricied reserves.

19 May 2005
On behalf of the Council: N\ On behalf of the Board:
R
i p v
Mamerts Vaivads Olga Pétersone
Chairman of thé Council Chairman of the Board

The annual report was approved in the sharsholders’ meefing of 1 July 2005.
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Income Statement

Group ] Parent company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Mote  LVL thousand LVL thousand LVL thousand  LYL thousand

Met sales 5 55,047 95,361 1,358 18,176
Cost of sales 6 (51,500) (52,605 (1,359) (15,225)
Gross profit 4 447 2,756 . 2,95
Sales and distribution expense (1,488) (1,460) - -
General and administrative expense 7 (6,036) (7,499 {1,639) (4.537)
Oiher operating income 8 12,420 5723 13,058 5,070
Ofher operating expense 9 (5,130) (7,074) (2,833) {2,303)
Result from operating activities 4,215 (7,554) 8,586 1,18
Gain/ (loss) in subsidiaries and associated entiies, net 17 12,821 {52) 9,955 (7,437)
Financial income/ (expense), net 11 {431) (1,729) (31) (362)
Result before taxes 16,605 (9,335) 18,510 (6,618)
Corporate income tax 12 1,324 (2.979) 1,626 (2,652
Net result before minority interest 17,929 (12,314) 20,136 (9,270}
Minority interest 1,284 2872 - &
Net result for the year 19,213 (9,442) 20,136 (9,270)
Earnings per share

in lats per share 29 0.182 (0.090) 0.193 (0.089)
Diluted earnings per share

in lats per share 29 0.182 (0.090) 0.193 (0.089)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

On behalf of the Council: |

Mamerts Vajvads
Chairman of thg Council

On behalf of the Board:
c-'-"'_'_'_'_'_.__'_\_zj
L
[/ QM?%

Olga Pétersone
Chairman of the Board
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Balance Sheet
ASSETS

Group Parent company
311212004 MH212003 HH22004 3MM22003
Mote  LVL thousand LVL thousand LVL thousand  LVL thousand

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets 13 (11,858) 37,505 (48,227)
Property, plant and equipment
Land, buildings and networks 14 117,039 110,506 - -
Machinery and equipment 14 43,944 43573 89 108
Other property, plant and equipment 14 6,117 7,661 569 742
Construction in progress 14,15 15,009 12,554 160 164
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment 15 2478 4003 - 1
TOTAL 184,587 178,297 838 1,012
Investment properties 16 2,580 2,612 5,751 5,868
Investments
Investments in subsidiaries and associated entities 17 92,437 162 277,304 162,439
Long-term loan to related parties 18 - - 4 541 4,755
Cther long-term loans to corporate entities 19 1,124 935 - -
TOTAL 93,561 1,097 281,845 167,194
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 268,870 219,511 240,207 174,074
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 21 10,003 10,026 4,352 2,520
Fixed assets for sale 22 - - . 21,713
Current portion of long-term receivables 19 42 140 . -
Shart-term loans to related parties 18,28 2,380 5,733 271 TE7
Trade accounts receivable 23 6,306 B,578 - -
Accounts receivable from related party 18 - - 854 1,229
Corporate income tax receivable 36 19 1,663 17 -
Cther accounts receivable 24 3,684 1,511 51 1,465
Prepaid expense 25 734 1.675 58 103
Accrued income 4594 465 - .
Trading investments 27 58 34,999 58 34,947
Cash and cash equivalents 28 7,381 8,330 79 480
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 31,056 71,120 5,740 63,274
TOTAL ASSETS 299,926 290,631 245947 237,348

The accompanying notes from an integral part of these financial statements.

On behalf of the Council: On behalf of the Board:
r’fﬁ_—')
a—u F g
W ealsy - Q‘ﬂ/s f&g’-.fz_ﬂx_—#—#
Mamerts Vaiyads Olga Pétersone
Chairman of the/ Council Chairman of the Board
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Balance Sheet

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Group Parent company
JMMZ2004 3111212003 MAZ2004  31A272003
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY Mote LVithousand  LVL thousand LVL thousand  LVL thousand
Share capital 29 104,479 104,479 104,479 104,479
Share premium 42343 42343 42343 42,343
Long-term assets revaluation reserve - - 691 72
Foreign currecy translation reserve (9,077) - (9,077) -
Restricted reserves 29 11,866 11,210 11,866 11,210
Other reserves 29 71,123 81,221 74,712 84 617
Current year unappropriated result 19,213 (9,442 20,136 (9,270}
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS'EQUITY 239,947 229,811 245,150 234,091
MINORITY INTEREST 44,013 45318
PROVISIONS
Cther provisions 30 - an
TOTAL PROVISIONS - 80 -
LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities
Deferred corporate income tax 12 2,252 3,852 35 2,216
Long-term portion of financial lease liability 32 a4 1,507 20 -
Leng-term loan from credit institution By - 80 - -
TOTAL 3,193 5,539 15 2,16
Current liabilities
Short-term portion of long-term loan X 4,608 2,004 -
Financial lease liabilities 32 754 4a0 -
Advances from customers 48 13 - 37
Trade accounts payable 4322 3,791 9 55
Accounts payable to related party - 2 105 17
Corporate income tax payable 36 - 548 - 548
Taxes payable 33 550 532 95 140
Ciher liabilities 34 563 556 33 5
Accrued liabilifies 35 1,477 1,082 138 159
Deferred income 451 247 - -
TOTAL 12,773 9,883 462 1,041
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,966 15,422 797 3,257
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 299,926 290,631 245947 237,348
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
On behalf of the Council: On behalf of the Board:

i ciss

.,--"'_'_'_._H'

CoAtion

Mamerts Vgivads

Olga Pétersone

Chairman of the Council Chairman of the Board
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Statement of Cash Flows

Group Parent company
2004 2003 2004 2003
LVLthousand  LVL thousand LVL thousand  LVL thousand
Cash flow from/ {to) operating activities '
Result before taxes 16,605 (9,335) 18,510 (6,618)
Adjustments
(Profit)f loss in subsidiaries and associated entities, net {12,821) - [9,955) 7437
(Increase) decrease in provisions {80 (5,350 - (3,665)
Megative goodwil (5,358) - (5,358 -
Adjustment to als Preses nams goodwill - - - (60)
Amortizafion and depreciaiton 12 822 17,621 1,906 7732
Interest income (307) (588) (97) (101)
Interest expense 238 268 10 13
(Gain) loss on disposals of tangible assets (1886) 521 (1,240} 68
Fair value adjustments - (48) - -
Gain from revaluation of oil and oil products (2,554) - {2,201}
Other adjustments - 102 24
Operating profit before changes in current assets and
liabilities 8,359 3,193 1,599 4,806
Decrease in inventory 2877 4874 360 861
Decrease/ {increase) in frade accounts receivable 271 {535) - 2,461
Decrease/ (increase) in other accounts receivable 303 7,821 (640) (1,821)
Increase/ (decrease) in current liabilities 501 (436) (660) (2,893)
Net cash from/ {fo) operating activities 12,011 14,917 668 3414
Tanes paid (295) 183 {292) {2,193)
Net cash from/ (to) operating activities 11,716 15,100 376 1,221
Cash flow from/ (to] investment activities
Purchase of fixed assets (18,218) (21,950) (78) (2,382)
Income from proceeds from sale of fixed assets 460 - 10 7,646
(Increase) in investments a : (886) (8,920)
Interest received 307 588 97 101
Received repayment of short-term loan 3497 7.072 - -
Dividends (paid) . (1,044) L (1,044)
Net cash flow from/ (to) investment activities (13,954) (15,334) (857) (4,599)
Cash flow from/ (to) financing activities
Increase/ {decrease) in own shares a0 {30) 90 (30
Borowings (paid) (1.890) (2,34T) . -
Borowings received 3307 898 20 s
Interest payments (238) (268) {10) (13)
Net cash from/ (to) investment activities 1,269 (1,647} 100 (43)
Net (decrease) in cash (969) (1,881) 381 3,421
Cash at the beginning of the year 8,330 10,211 460 3,881
Cash at the end of the year 7,361 8,330 79 460

The accompanying notes from an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Parent company
Long term  Foreign
Shara Share asesls cumency Restricted  Other Elarogh y.aar
: ; ; ; unappropriated  Total
capital  premium revaluation franslation reserves  reserves i
Masene rasene
Balance as of 1 January 2003 104479 42343 - . 9404 84738 2729 243,693
Transfer of 2002 net resull - - E 5 1,806 - (1,806) -
Distributed dividends ; : . : - (121 (923)  (1.044)
Long-erm assets revaluation - - 712 - - - - 712
Current year loss - - - - - - (9,270) 19,270
Balance as of 31 December 2003 104,479 42343 T2 - 11,210 B4,617 9,270) 234,091
Transfer of 2003 net result - - 635 [9,905) 9,270
Release of revaluation reserve - - (21} - 2 : - x
Fareign currency transiation - - - 807 - (9,077)
Current year result - 20,136 20,136
Balance as of 31 December 2004 104,479 42,343 691 (9,077) 11,866 74,712 20,136 245,150

During the restructuring process the new company SIA Ventspils nafta termin&ls was established (see also Mote 3 Group restructuring)
The invesiment in SI1A Ventspils nafta terminéls is comprised of cash and fixed assets. The fixed assets were invested at fair value in the
amount of LVL 53,918 thousand. The value of the invested fixed assets excesded the net book value for LVL 712 thousand, that
consaquently is represented as long term assets revaluation reserve (see also Mote 14 Property, plant and equipment).

Group
Foreign Previous
Share  Share  cumency Resticted Other years G':::m iﬂr Total
capital premium franslation reserves reserves  unappro- : o
. priated result
resanie priated rasult
Balance as of 1 January 2003 104479 42,343 - 9404 B4738 - (667) 240,297
Transfer of 2002 net consolidated result - - - - - {B67) BET
Transfer of 2002 net result of Parent - - - 1,806 - (1,806) - -
Distributed dividends by Parent - - - - {121} (523) - (1,044)
Curent year consolidated profit . - - (0.442)  (9.442)
Balance as of 31 January 2003 104,479 42,343 = 11,210 B4B1T (3,396) (9,442) 229,811
Transfer of 2003 net result - - - B35 (9,905 (172) 9442
Release of revalutaion resarve - - - 21 - (21) - -
Foreign cumency transkation - - (8,077) (9,077
Current year consolidated profit - - 19,213 19,213
Balance as of 31 December 2004 104,479 42343 (9,077) 11,8868 74,712 (3,589) 19,213 238,947

Previous years unappropriated result in included in the Other reserves caption of the Balance sheet
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Corporate information

Als Ventspils nafta (hereinafter also - the Company or the Parent company) is a public joint stock company organized under the laws of
the Republic of Latvia. The Company was first registered in the Enterprise Register on 9 May 1991, and then re-registered in the
Commercial Register on 5 August 2004 (under the number 50003003081). Since 20 October 1998 als Ventspils nafla is listed on the
Riga Stock Exchange main list. During the financial year the Company has changed legal address and since 22 January 2004 the
address is Ostas street 23, LV-3601, Ventspils, Republic of Latvia.

Als Ventspils nafta is a holding company dealing mainly with investment management in a/s Ventspils nafta Group companies and
transactions with own crude oil and oil products. Previously als Ventspils nafta was involved in reloading of crude oil and oil products,
hawever, as a result of a's Ventspils nafta Group restructuring in 2003 (see also Note 3) all reloading activities were fransferred to the
daughter company SIA Ventspils nafta termindls. Inifially, the Parent company's assets used in reloading transactions were partly
invested in, partly sold to and partly rented to SIA Ventspils nafta terminals. During 2004 the restructuring process was completed with
als Venfspils nafta selling all non-current assets previously used in reloading activities to SIA Ventspils nafta terminals. However,
als Ventspils nafta still holds the stock of crude oil and oil products necessary for technological needs of SIA Ventspils nafta terminals.

Als Ventspils nafta Group consisting of als Ventspils nafta and its subsidiaries (hereinafter also — the Group) is a multi-industrial holding.
The subsidiaries independently operate in the following industries:

Crude oil and il product fransportation via pipelines (314 LatRosTrans),

Crude cil and oil product storage and reloading to / from railway and ships (SIA Ventspils nafta terminals),
Media and publishing (as Preses nams and S1A& Mediju nams),

Real estate {S14 Rigas Iicis WN, SIA Nekustamie Tpadumi VN and its daughter companies).

In addition, the Parent company holds 49.94% stake in associated public company Latvian Shipping Company (als Latvijas kugnieciba),
the main activity of which is marine shipping business.

The financial statements of the Parent company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group were authorized for issue in
accordance with resolution of the Board of Directors on 18 May 2005 and resolution of the Council on 9 June 2005. The Group's
shareholders have the power to amend the financial statements after issue.

2. Significant accounting policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting pelicies followed in the preparation of the Parent company's and the Group's
financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The Parent company's and the Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board.

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis, except for inventories for sale (crude oil and oil products) and non-
current receivable from SIA Ventspils nafta terminals for borrowed crude il that have been measured at fair value,

Reporting currency and units of measurement

The accompanying financial statements are presented in thousands of lats (LVL 000's), unless otherwise stated. Lat (LVL) is the
monetary unit of the Republic of Latvia.

Reclassifications

Amounts reported for prior years in the Group's consolidated financial statements and notes have been reclassified to conform to the
cument year's presentation.
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2. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of als Ventspils nafta and its subsidiaries SIA Ventspils nafta
termindls, SIA LatRosTrans, as Preses nams, SIA Mediju nams, SIA Rigas Licis VN and SIA& Nekustamie Tpasumi VN, the later of
which includes SI4 Namserviss VM, SIA Maikapara nams, SIA Ventspils biznesa centrs, SIA Lejastiezumi, SIA Parventas sporta centrs
and SIA Darfumu centrs Daugava. The financial statemenis of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent
company, using consistent accounting policies.

The consclidated financial statements include 100 percent of the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, income, loss and cash flows of
als Ventspils nafta and companies in which afs Ventspils naffa has a controlling interest (subsidiaries), as if a's Ventspils nafta and its
subsidiaries were a single company. For the purposes of consolidation, unrealized intemal profit, inter-group balances, internal
shareholdings, internal dividends and other significant intermal transactions are eliminated in the Group's financial statements. Minority
interest is calculated for entities fully consolidated but not wholly owned. The compenents of net income and equity atfributable o the
minority shareholders are presented in the minority interest line items included in the Group's consolidated income statement and
Group's consolidated balance sheet.

Investments in subsidiaries and associated entities

Investments in subsidiaries (i.e. where the Parent company holds more than 50% interest of the share capital or otherwise confrols the
company) and associated entities (i.e. where the Parent company or the Group has significant influence, but less than a confrolling
interest, which is presumed to exist with 20 to 50% interest of the share capital of the entity) are stated in accordance with the equity
method, so that the Parent company/ Group includes ifs proportionate post-acquisition share of the results of operations of such enfities
in its staterments of income. Further, the investment in subsidiaries is adjusted for the Parent company's proportionate share of post-
acquisition movements in the subsidiary’s equity by a charge to the Parent company’s equity. As a result, the recorded value of the
investment corresponds to the Parent company’s proportionate share of the equity of the subsidiaries, and the consolidated net result
and equity correspond to those of the Parent company.

Other investments

Investments in non-public companies in which the Company does not have a controlling interest, or an ownership and voling interest
sufficiently large to exert significant influence, are accounted for at cost. Dividends and other distribufions of eamings from these
invesiments are included in income statement when received.

Change of accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except that the Group has adopted new
valuation policy for inventories held for sale. The principal effect of this decision is described below.

Valuation policy for inventories held for sale

In 2004 the Group started selling to third parties its crude oil and oil products in excess of the technological needs (pipe-fill and minimum
crude oil and il product balance in reservoirs). As a resull, in order to achieve mare relevant valuation for inventories the management
decided fo change accounting policy for its inventory of crude oll and oil products effective from 1 January 2004. Crude oil and oil
products are now being classified as either kept for technological needs or held for sale. Crude oil and oil products that are kept for
technological needs are valued at cost, whereas crude oil and oil products held for sale are valued at fair value because the cost of
these inventories can not be determined. The change of accounting policy has been applied prospectively since the management
believes that it is impracticable to restate the opening balances. The resulting adjustment from this change of accounting policy in SIA
Ventspils nafta terminals is an income from revaluation of crude oil in the amount of LVL 353 thousand. The resulting adjustment from
this change of accounting policy in the Parent company is an income from revaluation of crude oil in the amount of LVL 268 thousand
and income from revaluation of oil products in the amount of LVL 1,933 thousand. Hence, the total effect of the Group's consolidated
incorme staterment for the year ended 31 December 2004 is an income of LVL 2,554 thousand.
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2. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Statement Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires
management fo make esfimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Change of accounting estimate
Useful life of infangible and tangible assef

During 2004 the Group has reassessed useful life of intangible and tangible non-current assets in its Ventspils terminal resulting in the
following amortisation and depreciation rate changes:

Old depreciation Mew depreciation

rate rafe
Reservoirs 2.5% 2%
Technical pipelines 2.5% 2.2%
Water pipelines of metal 3.3% 29%
Other water pipelines (of malleable iron) 33% 1.25%
Sewerage systems 3% 25%
Heating networks 4% 29%
Valves 4% 3.3%
Mixers 10% 6.7%
Tractors 14,3% 12.5%
Buses and frucks 20% 12.5%
Printers, servers, computer networks, displays 20% 14.3%
Goodwill on acquisifion of als Mafias Parks 10% B.7%

During 2004 the Group has also reassessed useful life of intangible and tangible non-current assets in its crude ol and oil product
pipeling transportation network resulting in the following amortisation and depreciation rate changes:

Old depreciation MNew depreciation
rate rate
il and oil product transmission pipeline network 2.9% 21-2.3%
Land use rights 4% 2.5-4%

Had previous amortisation and depreciation rates been applied throughout 2004 in Ventspils terminal the total depreciation charge
would have been LVL 507 thousand larger for tangible non current assets and LVL 129 thousand for intangible non current assets
(goodwill) with the respective decrease in non-current assets. Had previous amortisation and depreciation rates been applied throughout
2004 in crude oil and oil product pipeling transportation network the total depreciation charge would have been LVL 1,777 thousand

larger for tangible non current assets and LVL 900 thousand for intangible non current assets {land use rights) with the respective
decrease in non-current assets.

Investment in associated company a's Latvijas kugnieciba

Curing 2004 the Group has reassessed intentions as to its 49.94% investment in public joint stock company Latvijas kudniecTba, This
investment has previously been considered as available-for-sale since the management intended to sell it in near future. As such, the
investment in afs Latvijas kugniecToa has been classified as current asset and carried at cost because its fair value could not have been
reliably determined. However, due to posilive operafing results of afs Latvijas kugnieciba it was decided to keep the Group's significant
influence and consequently the investment in a/s Latvijas kugnieciba was restated in accordance with the equity method and reclassified
to non-current invesiments in associated entities. As at 31 Decamber 2004 the resulting increase in the carrying value of als Latvijas
kugnieciba investment was LVL 57,354 thousand with the corresponding recognition of negative goodwill in the amount of LVL 48,227
thousand, negative foreign currency translation reserve in the amount of LVL 3,077 thousand, net gain from investment in associated

entity in the amount of LVL 12,846 thousand and income from amortization of a/s Latvijas kugniectba negative goodwill in the amount of
LVL 5,358 thousand.
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2. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Foreign currency fransactions
A significant part of the Parent company’s and the Group's revenues are denominated in USD.

Goods and services invoiced or payable in foreign currencies are recorded at the official exchange rate applicable at the date of
transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are stated at the official currency exchange rate set by the Bank of
Latvia at year end. Any gain or loss resulting from a change in the currency rates of exchange is included in the statements of income.

3N 212004 3122003 3122002
uso 0.516000 0.541000 0.594000
GEP (.896000 0.960000 0.946000
EUR 0.703000 0.674000 0.610000
SEK 0.078200 0.074000 0.066800

The functional currency of the Group is Latvian Lat (LVL), except for the associate entity afs Latvijas kugnieciba, the functional currency
of which is United States Dollar (USD). The translation of the investment in a/s Latvijas kugnieciba from the applicable functional
currency info the Group's reporting currency is performed for balance sheet accounts using exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet
date, and for income statement accounts using average rate of exchange prevailing during the year. The resulting transiation

adjustments are excluded from the determination of net gain on invesiments and are accumulated as foreign currency translation
reserve until the entity is sold or substantially liquidated.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of land use rights, goodwill, negative goodwill and other intangible assets related to the business of the Parent
company and its subsidiaries.

Land use rights are stated at contributed value as agreed by the subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans founders. Until 1 January 2004, the
respective assets were amortized over 25 years using straight-ine method. In 2004, the subsidiary’s SIA LatRosTrans management
reviewed the useful life of land use rights and extended it to 40 years, except for the section of the main oil pipeline BirZai (Lithuania)-
Ventspils, which is attributable to the closed pipeline section. The useful life of land use rights in respect to the closed section of the

main oil pipeline in Ventspils direction remained unchanged - 25 years. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2004, its remaining useful life
was 19 years.

Goodwill mainly represents the difference between acquisition cost and net book value of assets related to the Group's historical
acquisition of a part of the crude oil and oil product reloading business. In 2004, the Group has changed the goodwill amortization rate,
and the remaining goodwill is now amoriized over 15 years on a straight-line basis.

Magative goodwill represents the difference between the stated fair value of net assets at the date of acquisition of the Parent
company’s associated entity a/s Latvijas kugniecba and their acquisition cost. The negative goodwill is presented as deduction from the
Group's intangible non-current assets in the same balance sheet caption as goodwill. The amount of negalive goodwill relating to
identifiable non-monetary assets of als Latvijas kugnieciba (fleet of vessels) is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the 25
year period representing remaining useful lives of the identifiable acquired depreciable assets.

Olher intangible assets are stated at cost value and amortized over their useful life using the siraighi-line method. Amortization rates for
those intangible fixed assets vary between 10% and 35% per annum,

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be

impaired. Losses resulting in impairment are recognized if the carrying value of intangible non-current assets exceeds their recoverable
value,
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2. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after
the assets have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged fo statement of
income in the period the costs are incurred.

In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and eguipment beyond its originally assessed standard of
performance, the expendifures are capitalized as an additional cost of property, plant and equipment.

The Group estimates the recoverable amount of an asset whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. An impairment
loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Consfruction in progress represents assets under construction and is stated at historical cost. This includes the cost of construction and

other direct costs. Construction in progress is not depreciated as long as the respective assets are not completed and put into
operational use.

SIA LatRosTrans property, plant and equipment are stated at contributed values as agreed by the subsidiary's founders in 1995, and
subsequent additions are stated af cost.

The following depreciation rates have been used by the Group:

%
Buildings and networks 1-10
Machinery and equipment 8.3-50
Other property, plant and equipment 10-50

Investment properties

Investment properfies consist of investments in land and bulldings that are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes or sale in the ordinary course of business.
Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense when incured in accordance with the benchmark accounting treatment under
International Accounting Standard 23.

Leases

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalized at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present valug of the minimum lease
payments with an equivalent liability under fong and short-term liabilities. Lease is classified as finance lease when the present value of
the minimum lease payments amounts to at least 80% of the fair value of the leased asset. Lease payments are apportioned between
the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability. Finance charges are allocated to accounting periods aver the period of the lease
to produce a constant rate of return on the outstanding balance, and included in financial expenses in the statements of income.

If there is a reasonable certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the period of expected use is the
useful life of the asset; otherwise capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or
the lease term on a straight-iine basis.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, except for crude cil and oil products intended for sale and stated at
fair value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of complefion and
the esfimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Crude oil and oil products

Crude il and oil products held for technological needs are stated using the weighted average cost method.
Crude oil and oil products indented for sale are stated at fair value based on market price.

Materials

The cost of materials and supplies in the Parent company and in the subsidiaries are determined using the weighed average cost
method. These materials are recorded as inventory when purchased and then expensed or capitalized to long-term assets, as
appropriate, when installed. The Group writes off unrealizable inventory and records allowance for obsolete inventory as such items are

identified.

Unfinished inventory

Unfinished inventory is stated at direct cost, including raw materials and labor.

Finished inventory

Finished inventory is stated at direct cost with addition of indirect costs related to production. Indirect production costs consist of labor,
energy, depreciation and other production costs. Allowances for slow moving items are established, based on individual evaluation of
each inventory item.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognized and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. An estimate
for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable, based on evaluation of individual receivable
balances. Doubtful debts are written off when recovery is deemed impossible.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are shori-term, highly liquid investments that are readily

convertible info known amounts of cash with original maturiies of three months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value,

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs associated
with the borrowing. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on
settlement. Gains and losses are recognized in net profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortization process.

Accruals and deferrals

Accruals and deferrals are recorded to recognize revenues and expenses as they are eamed or incurred.

The amount billed by the newspaper distibutors in relation to the subscription of the newspapers not delivered during the reporting
period has been recognized as trade accounts receivable and deferred income.
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2. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Revenue

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Rendering of services

The principal services rendered by the Group comprise reloading and pipeline transportation of crude oil and oil products as well as
printing services. Revenue is recognized by reference to the stage of completion, Revenue is recognized in the period when the services
are provided.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated refiably, revenue is recognized only to the
extent of the expenses recognized that are recoverable.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

Inferest

Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues (using the effective interest method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument) to the net carrying amount of the financial asset,

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive the payment is established.

Rental income

Rental income arising on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term on angoing leases.

Taxes
Corporate income tax

In accordance with Latvian tax legislation current corporate income tax is applied at the rate of 15% on faxable income generated by the
Parent company and its subsidiaries during the taxation period ending 31 December 2004 (in 2003: 198%).

Deferred corporate income tax

Deferred corporate income tax, arising from temporary differences in the timing of the recognition of ilems in the tax returns and these
financial statements, is calculated using the liability method. The deferred taxation liability is determined based on the tax rates expected
when the asset is to be realized. The principal temporary timing differences arise from differing rates and methods of accounting and tax
depreciation on property, plant and equipment as well as the treatment of temporary non-taxable allowances and provisions and
temparary difference in tax losses carried forward for the subsequent five years.

VAT proportion
A part of revenues of the subsidiary als Preses nams are exempted from VAT (newspaper sales). As a result, the Company's purchase
VAT is recoverable proportionally to the sales subject to VAT,

Ventspils Free Port

On 19 December 1996, the Latvian Parliament adopted the Law on Ventspils Free Port, effective 1 January 1997, This Law provides for
exemption from value added fax and excise tax charges for the companies operating within the territory of Ventspils Free Port.
SIA Ventspils nafta terminals is operating in the territory of Ventspils Free Port, having obtained all the required parmits.

According to the Law on the Application of Taxes in Free Poris and Special Economic Zones, effective from 1 January 2002, subsidiary
S1A Ventspils nafta terminals has the right to receive 80% tax rebate on real estate tax and corporate income tax. The total amount of
tax rebates can not exceed 50% from the amount of investmenis made in the Ventspils Freeport, made according to the special
agreement between the subsidiary and Ventspils Freeport Authority.
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2. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Contingencies

Confingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embody economic benefits is remote. A confingent asset is not recognized in the financial stalements but disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable,

Related parties

Related parties are defined as subsidiaries and associated enfifies of the Parent company as well as shareholders that may exercise
control or significant influence over the Company's operations, Council and Board members, their close members of the families and
entities over which these persons exercise significant influence or control,

Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net result after taxation for the year by the average number of shares in issue during

the year. The average number of the shares in issue during the year has been weighted to take into account the timing of the issue of
new shares.

Subsequent events

Post year end events that provide additional informafion about the Group's position at the balance sheet date (adjusfing events) are
reflected in the financial statements. Post year end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

3. Group restructuring

In 2003 the Management and the Council of the Parent company decided to restructure als Ventspils nafta Group in order to improve

the legal structure of the Group as well as to encourage the attraction of business partners for crude oil and oil product reloading
business.

Based on this decision, the following businesses were separated in 2003 from the parent company a's Ventspils nafta:

- Qil and oil products refoading business by establishment of new company SIA Ventspils nafta termindls with initial share capital
of LVL 30 thousand, which subsequently in October 2003 was increased fo LVL 53,948 thousand. The Statutes of the subsidiary
SlA Ventspils nafta terminals have been registered in the Commercial Register of the Republic of Latvia on 4 July 2003, but the
operations were started on 1 October 2003. In order to ensure the operations of the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafia terminls, als
Ventspils nafta partly invested, partly sold and partly rented assets necessary for operations.

Real estate business by establishment of a group of daughter companies under SIA Nekustamie fpasumi VN. The new real
estate management companies consolidated in SIA Nekustamie Tpadumi WM are SIA Darfumu centrs Daugava, SIA Ventspils
biznesa cenirs, SI4 Maikapara nams, SIA Namserviss VN, SIA Parventas sporta cenirs and SlA Lejastiszumi,

The restructuring process continued in 2004 as the Parent company transferred the remaining reloading business related assets to
SlA Ventspils nafta terminals,

Currently, afs Ventspils nafta mainly deals with investment management in a's Ventspils nafta Group companies and transactions with
own crude oil and oil products,
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4. Segment information
The Group has presented the information by each separate business segment.
The below table presents the breakdown of income statement item, as well as assets and liabilities by business segments:

Crude oil and oil  Publishing and Real estate

products printing management Shipping Cther Consolidated
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
et sales 34,308 352689 20,738 19049 800 143 . . - - 55947 55361
Cost of sales (31,752) (34,812) (18,173) (17.496) (1,575) (297 - - - - (51,500} (52,605)
Sales and
distribution
expense . - [1,486) (1.460) . - - - - - [1.488) (1.460)
General and
administrative
ENpEnse (3499) (6310) (847) (1,018)  (221) (169) - - (1.460) (2) (6,036) (7.490)
Cther operating
income/ {expense) 4325 (1,438 84 3] 2 18 5,358 -(2479) 1 7290 (1,351}

Segment result 3,383 (7,289) 36 41 (894) (305) 5,358 -(3,948) (1) 4215 (7,554)
Revaluation of

investments 12,846 (25) 12,821 (52
Financial expense,
net (431)  {1,729)
Corporate income
ta 1324 (2979)
Minority interest 1,284 2872
Netresult 3,383 (7.289) 316 41 (894)  (305) 18,204 - (3.973) (1) 18213 (9,442
Segment assets 220,084 216,302 16933 17,821 15268 16,167 44,073 - 1,101 18 297432 240536
Unallocated assels 2487 41,035
Total consolidated
assets 299,926 290,631
Segment liabilities
and provisions 4,082 4186 2778 4502 184 467 - - 37 1 T4 955
Unallocated segment
liabilities 8555 5948
Total consolidated
liabilities and
provisions 15966 15,502
Capital expenditure 18,900 21,399 1498 23%7 26 918 - - 78 - 20502 24654
Amortization and
depreciation 10,291 15838 1,882 18660 587 123 - - 62 - 12822 17.62
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4. Segment information (cont'd)
The management considers that the preparation of business segment cash flow is not practical.

Since all the operations as well as the all the material assets of the group are located in Latvia the management considers imelevant to
prapare the secondary segment reporting format according to geographical locations.

The descriptions of the segments:
Crude oil and oil products:

The revenues in crude oil and oil product business segment mainly come from the transporting, storage and reloading of oil and oil
products in Latvia.

Publishing and printing.

The revenues in this business segment make charge for printing service to Latvian residents and non-residents, as well as, income from
newspaper publishing and adverlising services related to it.

Real sstate managemeant:

Callected rent charges and other income related to real estate management make the revenues in this business segment,
Shipping:

The business represents investment in cargo shipping business.

5. Net sales
Group Parent company
2004 2003 2004 2003

Prinfing services 17,855 16,535 - -
Reloading of crude oil and oil products 3 16,998 .73 - 18,116
Transportation of crude oil products 7.182 5,974 -
Transportation of crude il & 6,428 7,503
Income from sale of crude oil and ol products 4,701 - 1,359
MNewspaper sales 1,759 1,975 - -
Rental income and real estate management 807 527
Advertisements 454 736 -
Income from sale of non-current assets 450 - -
Other 513 a4 . &0

TOTAL: §5,947 55,361 1,359 18,176

a) Met sales from reloading the oil products from the shore to ships in year 2003 for the parent company consist of the turnover for the
9 month period ended as of 30 September 2003. (See alse Mote 3 Group restruciuring)

b) At the end of 2002, transportation of crude oil through the subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans pipeline in Ventspils direction was fully
ceased by the Russian suppliers. As further described in Note 14 Property, plant and equipment the management and the Council of

the Parent company and the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans are working on plans how fo resume oil transportation to the Ventspils
direction,

22



Als Ventspils nafta Annual and consolidated annual report
Address; 23 Ostas street, LV-3601, for the year ended 31 December 2004
Yentspils, Republic of Latvia

Unified registration number: 50003003091

6. Cost of sales

Group Parent company
2004 2003 2004 2003

Amortization and depreciation 12,060 16,494 - 5,659
Raw materials 10,210 9,469
Remuneration for work 8,919 8,101 - 1,556
Cost of sold cil and ol products 3777 - 1,358
Insurance expenses 2,519 2436 . 1,322
Utlities 1,976 2,339 - 932
Social security contributions 1,963 1,738 . 381
Materials and spare parts 1,700 1,744 - 445
Transit development 1,092 1,252
Security 888 ara
Environment protection expense 830 578 - 47
Railway charges 788 1,512 - 1,356
Ulilization of piers 743 978 - ad1
Land rent 680 689 - 522
Real estate tax 540 1,331 - 843
Processing works 465 254 -
Treatment of technological waste water 430 888 - 765
Communication expense 341 214
Services received from other companies 3 431 - 272
Book value of non-current assets sold 284
Helicopter servicas 249 238
Repair works done by other companies 242 384 - 226
Mon-deductible VAT 32 136 -
Changes in inventary (143) 13 - 42
Cther 593 515 - 15

TOTAL: 51,500 52,605 1,359 15,225

The costs of sales for the Parent company in year 2003 mainly consist of the costs for the 9 month period ended as of 30 Seplember
2003. (See also Note 3 Group restructuring)
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7. General and administrative expense

Group Parent company
2004 2003 2004 2003

Remuneration for work 2,064 3,265 523 1,584
Professional charges and legal costs 1,287 338 202 108
Social security contributions 417 540 100 401
Amartization and depreciation 392 686 62 580
Advertising and marketing 306 527 100 400
Sports adverlising expenses 268
Insurance 175 185 118 178
Rent of premises 126 125 172 169
Allowance for doubtful and bad debis 114 254
Representation expense 107 74 1 38
Vehicle maintenance expense 1058 118 74 106
Business frips 99 145 11 83
Bank charges 73 87 B4 48
Communication expense B 152 22 "7
Social infrastructure expense 59 52 -
Conferences, seminars and fraining 21 ar 8 25
Research and development costs - 416 - 416
Other personnel expense - 120 - 64
Release of fair value adjustment for long-term advance (229) (46} - (275)
Prior years (income)/ expense, net - (108) - (108)
Other expense 566 432 162 193

TOTAL: 6,036 7,499 1,639 4,537

The general and administrative costs for the parent company in year 2003 mainly consist of the costs for the 9 month period ended as of
30 September 2003. (See also Note 3 Group restructuring)
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8. Other operating income

Group Parent company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Gain from revaluation of oil and oil products at stock 5,535 5,535
Amortization of a's Latvijas kugniecTba negative goodwill 5,358 - 5,358
Recoverad VAT and excise fax penalty & 790
Income from oil extracted from waste waters 429
Gain from sale of non-current assets 20 1,240
Release of allowances for doubtful and bad debt 4 3 1 3
Income from rent of fixed assets 2 54 336 1,289
Penalties received 20 1
Purification of piers 2 319 - 3,353
Provision for oil products compensation to clients - 2,091 -
Release of accrued expenses - 364 364
Megative goodwill of a/s Preses nams &0
Manégement fee 270
Real estate management 252
Ckher income 282 - 66 -
TOTAL: 12,420 5723 13,058 5,070

a) After the recrganization of the Parent company by transferring crude oil and oil product reloading business to subsidiary
SI& Ventspils nafta terminals, the Parent company released the remaining provision for purification of piers. The management of als
Ventspils nafta believes that the majority of the needed purification work has been performed and the Group will not need any further
significant investments in purification works (see also Note 30 Provisions).

b)  See note 37 Contingent liabiliies
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9. Other operating (expense)

Group Parent company
2004 2003 2004 2003

Cil product losses 2 (1,973) (4,645) -
Depreciation {210 (160} {1,523 (150)
Payments to local municipality ® (850) (200) o (200)
VAT and excise tax according to the ruling of the court © (481) (1,208)
Sponsorship (384) (364) (225) (364)
Cost of converted Board and reserve shares (300) {300)
Personnel expensas (291) (191) - (82)
Amortization of goodwill (143) (271) - (271)
Real estate tax (127) (127)
Provision for expenses arising from oil product theft (76)
Penalties paid (16) - {8)
Disposal of investment (24) - {24)
Depreciation and insurance expense related to renfed fixed assets - - (321) (1,163)
Real estate development expense - . (305)
Other expenses (255) (35) - (73}

TOTAL: {5,130) (7,074} (2,833) (2,303

a) In 2004, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans incurred losses of oil products, which exceeded the rate for wastages agreed with the
clients (until 1 February 2004 — 0.15% and from 1 February 2004 - 0.1% of total transported volume) by 19.5 thousand tons (2003: 30.6
thousand tons). According to the Council resolutions, dated 15 July 2004 and 28 April 2005, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans wrote off
the above excessive oil product losses for 2004 of 19.5 thousand tons amounting to LVL 1,973 thousand (for 2003: LVL 3,085 thousand)
according to the average weighted cost of oil products (see also Note 21).

bj According to the agreement concluded between subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals and Ventspils City Council, SIA Ventspils
nafta terminals pays Ventspils City Council a fixed amount of LVL 700 thousand annually for transportation of oil and oil products
through the Ventspils City terrifory plus a variable amount, which does not exceed 1% of the Company's net turnover, for development

of Ventspils social infrastructure. According to a separate agreement, the respective payment to Ventspils Council for the year 2004
amounts to LVL 850 thousand.

¢ Seenote 37 Confingent liabilities
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10. Personnel expenses

Group Parent company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Average number of employees 2,387 2932 32 593
Remuneration for work and social security expense
Group Parent company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Remuneration for work 10,609 10,641 130 3,041
Social security contributions 2,351 2323 35 732
(Other personnel expense 105 150 66
Management and lhe Board of Direclors
Remunerafion for work 574 473 173 308
Social security contributions 79 43 19 14
Other personnel expense 17 27 23
Members of the Council
Remuneration for work 522 518 220 237
Social security contributions 119 82 48 45
Other personnel expense 4 10 9
TOTAL: 14,380 14,267 623 4,475
Personne! expense is included in the following caplions of the balance sheet and statement of income:
Group Parent company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Cost of sales 10,915 9,851 1,958
Selling expenses 599 215 -
General and adminisirative expenses 2,494 3,947 623 2425
Cther operating expenses 37z 250 87
Construction in progress - 4 <
TOTAL: 14,380 14,267 623 4,475
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11. Financial income/ (expense), net

Group Parent company
_— 2004 2003 2004 2003
Interest income on loans 203 483 g5 88
Interest income from bank account balances and deposits 104 105 2 13
Income from trading investments 62 34 62 2
Interest expense (238) (268) (10) (13)
Foreign currency exchange gain/ (loss), net (562)  (2,083) (180} {452
TOTAL: (431)  (1,729) (31) (362)
12. Corporate income tax
Group Parent company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Current income tax
Current income tax 275 1,878 275 1,878
Defarred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences {151} 3,695 (1,901} 3,085
Relating to change on the opening balance of the deferred income tax
from used income tax rates in year 2003 - {1,729 . {1,729)
Relating to change in income tax rates = (1,448) (B65) - (532)
Income tax reported in income statement (1,324) 2,979 (1,626) 2,652

a) In 2004, the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls applied 5% corporate income tax rate {previously — 15 %) for the calculation of
deferred tax liability based on the management's assumption that the subsidiary SI4 Ventspils nafta termindls will benefit from 80%

carporate income tax rebate applied to companies operating in accordance with the law of the Republic of Latvia On Tax Application in
Free Ports and Special Economic Zones.
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12. Corporate income tax (cont'd)

Deferred corporate income tax:

Deferred income tax liability
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes

Decrease in deferred income tax due to changes in corporate income
tax rate

Unrecorded release of deferred tax liability

Gross deferred tax liability

Deferred income tax asset

Tax losses camied forward

Dieferred tax assets related to other temporary differences

Tax rebate on investment projects above LVL 10,000 thousand ®
Less valuation allowance for tax asset

Gross deferred tax asset

Net deferred income tax liability

Group Parent company
_ 3 212004 HN22003  AMN22004  3NM22003
{9,753) (6,828} (315) (2,216)
1,448
(12)
(8,317) (6,828) (315) (2,216)
3,739 1,041 .
11 a0
4,166 4,166
(1,941} (2,311
6,065 2976 -
(2,252) (3,852) (315) (2,216)

a) According to the decision of the Cabinet of Ministers No. 613, dated 30 October 2002, subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans has been granted
a tax rebate of 40% of the planned investment value or LVL 4,166 thousand to reduce corporate income tax for the purpose of
supporting the investment projects amounting to LVL 10,415 thousand. The subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans can use the rebate against
future taxable profit during 10 years, if it fulfils the above mentioned investment plan within the period 17 July 2000 through 31
December 2004, The above mentioned investment plan had been fulfiled by the end of the year 2003. Upen applying the above tax
rebats, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans calculates the corporate income tax at 25%.

Group tax losses carried forward, mainly consisting of tax loses of subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans (to be utilized at a rate of 25%) expire as

follows:

LWL

thousand

Year 2006 3

Year 2007 1,363

Year 2008 8,895

Year 2009 4746

Total 15,007
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12. Corporate income tax (cont'd)

Actual corporate income tax charge for the reporting year, if compared with theoretical calculations:

Group Parent company
2004 2003 2004 2003

Income before corporate income tax 16,376 (9,335) 18,510 {6,618)
Corporate income tax 15% (2003 - 19%) 2,456 (1,774) 2777 (1.257)
Decrease in corporate income tax applicable for the parent company - {1,729) (1,729
Permanent differences including the effect of intra-group ransactions (2,263 214 (2,844} 320
Increase of income tax rate effect on the closing balance of the
deferred income tax 36 - 591
Tax losses offset within the group (1,490) {1,073)
Income tax rate decrease and tax discount effect on the closing
balance of defarred income tax 5,766 5,766
Unrecognized tax losses 83 :
Effect of corporate income tax rate change on the deferred corporate
income fax charge (1,448) -
Qther (69 103 (69) 34

Corporate income tax included in the income statement (4 324) 2,979 (1,626) 2652

Permanent differences includes non-taxable revaluation of investment in a's Latvijas kugniecba of LVL (1,927) and amortization of
als Latvijas kugniecTba negative goodwill of LVL (804),

13. Intangible assets

Group Parent
company
: Other .
landuse o oqwi  Negatve L ngible  Total g
rights goodwill goodwill
assels
Cost value as at 01/01/2004 49,659 2,740 27 52,426 -
2004 Additions - (53,585) 18 (53,567) (53,585)
Set off of accumulated depreciation - (1,288) - (1,288) -
Cost value as at 31/12/2004 43,659 1452  (53,585) 45 (2,429) (53,585)
Accumulated amortisation 13.617 1,298 - B 14,921 -
2004 Amaortisation for the year 997 146 {5,358) 11 (4,204) (5,358)
Set off of accumulated depreciation - {1,288) - - (1,288) -
Balance as at 31/12/2004 14,614 156 {5,358) 17 9,428 {5,358)
Net book value 01/01/2004 36,042 1,442 . 21 37,508 -
Net book value 31/12/2004 35,045 1,296  (48,227) 28 (11,858) (48,227)
Amortisation rate (straight line method) 254% 6.67-10% 4% 10-35% 4%
(a) (o) (c) (c)
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13. Intangible assets (cont'd)

a) In connection with the subsidiary’s SIA LalRosTrans foundation, the Republic of Latvia, represented by als LaSam, confributed use
rights to the land, where the subsidiary’s SIA LatRosTrans transmission pipelines are located at a value of LVL 49,659 thousand. The
confribution value was agreed by the founders of the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans according to agreement dated 29 September 1985,

The subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans right to the contributed land use rights is based on Law On Restriction Zones dated 5 February 1997
and Latvian Civil Law, according to which subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans has use rights to the land where the subsidiary's
SIA LatRosTrans exisfing pipelines are located. In case of repairs or similar activities on the pipelines, any damage to the land must be
compensated to the owners. Further, use of land for new pipelines must be compensated to the owners, new pipelines being defined as
pipelines being established after the law came into force.

The land owners and boundaries of the respective land plots have been identified, and cadastral register statements have been
received. The subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans has obtained all respective documents. The work on registration of title to the land and

encumbrances has been performed by the land owners. As at the year end, the registration of easements has been accomplished by
70%.

Land use rights are sfated at contributed value as agreed on by the subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans founders. Until 1 January 2004, the
respective assets were amortized over 25 years using the straight-line method. During the period from 1999 to 2004, the subsidiary
SlA LatRosTrans invested in modemization of the pipeline network more than LVL 50 million, and the subsidiary's SIA LalRosTrans
management believes that the useful life of land use rights could be substantially extended by making additional overhauls.
Consequently, the useful life of the land use rights have been reviewed and extended to 40 years. The useful life of the proportionate
part of the land use rights afiribuiable to the closed main pipeline section in Ventspils direction remained unchanged.

Management of SIA LatRosTrans and a/s Veentspils nafta has considered the need for an allowance for impairment of land use rights
and decided that such allowance was not reguired using the same rationale as described in Note 14 Property, plant and equipment.

b} In the auction on 8 December 1998, afs Ventspils nafta obtained the rights to purchase 45 939 shares of a/s Naftas parks constituting

99.98% of the company’s share capital. On 31 March 1999, the acquisition was completed and goodwill amounting to LVL 2,713
thousand was recognized in the books of a's Ventspils nafta.

As upon establishment of SIA Ventspils nafta termindls in 2003 afs Ventspils nafta paid up its share capital partly by non-current assefs
which previously had been the property of a's Maftas Parks. Upon the establishment of SIA Ventspils nafta terminals, a's Ventspils nafta
ceased reloading of crude oil and oil products, with SIA Ventspils nafta termingls taking over these operations, utilizing, among others,
the former non-current assets of a/s Naftas Parks. On 22 Seplember 2004 SIA Ventspils nafta terminals entered into an agreement with
a/s Ventspils nafta on acquisition of the Company’s goodwill in the amount of LVL 1,424 thousand (as at 31 December 2003, the net
baok value of the goodwill was LVL 1,425 thousand). As a result of fransaction, accumulated depreciation amounfing to LVL 1,288
thousand was set-off in the Group's intangible assets movement schedule.

c) On 25 June 2002 the Parent company took part in the auction of als Latvijas kugnieciba shares. The Parent company acquired
62,538,261 shares of JSC Latvian shipping company for LVL 0.35 per share and 1,493,694 Global depositary receipts (GDR) (1 GDR =
25 shares) for USD 14.30 per GDR. Following the change in accounting estimate in 2004 (see also Note 2), the negative goodwill in the
amount of LVL 53,585 thousand was recognized in the financial statements and respective amortization calculated starting from 25 June

2002, The negative goodwill is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the remaining weighted average useful iife of the
identifiable depreciable assets.

Amortization expenses have been included in the following captions of the statements of income:

Group Parent company

2004 2003 2004 2003

Cost of sales 1,005 1,500
Sales and distribution expenses 2 - -
General and administrative expenses < -
Other operating income (5,358) : (5,358) .
Other operating expenses 143 272 - 271
TOTAL: (4,204) 2,172 (5,358) an
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14. Property, plant and equipment

Parent company
Total, excluding
Machinary and Dﬂ;;g:i ':;rt:'r' Constructionin ~ prepayments for
equipment : prograss property, plant and
equipment sauinment

Cost value as at 01/01/2004 272 1.7 164 2,167
Additions . - 78 78

2004 Disposals (40) (1) - 41)
Transfers 58 24 (82) -

Cost value as at 311212004 290 1754 160 2,204
Accumulated depreciation as at 01/01/2004 167 989 - 1,156
2004 Depreciation for the year 51 177 - 228
Disposals (17} (1 - (18)
Accumulated depreciation as at 31/12/2004 201 1,165 - 1,366
Net book value as at 01/01/2004 105 T42 164 1,011
Net book value as at 3111212004 B3 589 160 838

Depreciation rate (straight-fine) 10-33% 10-50%

The cadastral value of land owned by the Parent company as of 31 December 2004 amounts to LVL 234 thousand (2003: LVL 234
thousand).

As at the end of 2003 and 2004, real estate owned by als Ventspils nafta is recognized as investment properties (see also Note 16
Investment properties).

Group
Total, excluding
Land, buildings Machinery and Dlh;;;rmm, Construction in ~ prepayments for
and networks  equipment squipment progress  property, plant and
equipment
Cost value as al 01/01/2004 214 617 76,870 24,780 12,554 328,801
Additions 324 752 1,854 17,572 20,502
2004 Disposals (298) (392) (132) (684) (1,508)
Transfers 10,857 4,578 (1,002) (14,433) -
Cost value as at 31/12/2004 225,500 81,808 25480 15,009 7797
Accumulated depreciafion as at 01/01/2004 104,111 33,297 17,099 - 154,507
Depreciation for the year 4,361 4,790 2485 11,636
2004 Disposals (11) (320) (124) (455)
Transfers - a7 {97) -
Accumulated depreciation as at 31/12/2004 108,461 37,864 19,363 - 165,688
Net book value as at 01/01/2004 110,506 43,573 1,661 12,554 174,294
Net book value as at 3112/2004 117,039 43,944 6,117 15,008 182,109
Depreciation rate (straight-line) 1-10% 8.3-50% 10-50%

In 2004, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans reviewed the useful life of the main pipelines according to the evaluation performed by
independent evaluator a/s IBNA. The above evaluafion comprised the analysis of the technical condition of main pipelines, assessment
of diagnostic methods and analysis of eliminafion of the identified defects. As a result, the useful lives of main pipelines were extended
by 13-20 years at average and the depreciation charge for the year was decreased by LVL 1,777 thousand. According to the evaluation
performed by afs IBMA, from 2 May 2005, the subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans technological equipment cannot be considered an
integrated main pipeline amortization unit. Moreover, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans is constantly performing main pipeline repairs in
the result of which the remaining useful lives of pipelines considerably increase. Therefore, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans believes
that there is no need for depreciating the equipment the remaining useful life of which exceeds the remaining useful life of main pipelines
over the remaining useful life of the respective main pipelines.
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14, Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

in 2002 transportation of crude oil through the subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans pipeline to Ventspils direction was fully ceased. The Parent
company's and the subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans management are taking measures and working on possible scenarios how to resume
crude oil transportation in Ventspils direction. Therefore, also taking into account current tendencies prevailing at the global il market,
Parent company's and the subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans management and the Council believe that the current situation is temporary
and that the transportation of crude oil will resume in the foreseeable future. The aggregate proportional value of tangible and intangible
non-current assets related to crude oil transportation in Ventspils direction approximates LVL 22 million.

As further described in Note 27, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans has incurred substantial physical losses of oil products since 2002.
Regardless of positive court rulings, this may result in additional tax liabilities and penalties relating to deficiencies of oil products, which
may lead to a negative cash flow related to oil product transportation in Ventspils direction. According to the court ruling of 8 Cctober
2004, the State Revenue Service has cancelled its claim for additional taxes related to 2001. The above court ruling was further used in
calculation of the taxes on physical losses incurred in 2002 and 2003. In addition, the Council of the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans has set
up a workgroup consisting of shareholder representatives and various other parties in order to work out a positive solution in relation to
the reduction of physical losses of cil products and related tax consequences. The aggregate proportional value of tangible and
intangible non-current assets related to the oil product transportation in Ventspils direction approximates LVL 53 million.

The Parent company's and the subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans management and the Council strongly believe that no adjustment for
impairment of the above fixed assets related to crude oil and oil product transportation in the Ventspils direction amounting to
approximately LVL 75 million as at 31 December 2004, comprising the value of tangible non-current assets of LVL 47 thousand and
proportional value of intangible non-current assets of LVL 28 thousand should be included in the financial statements for 2004. Where
the existing situation becomes permanent and the pipeline cannot be used for alternative purposes, and the oil product losses and

related tax consequences are not reduced, the respective impairment will be presented in the following subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans
financial statements,

As of 31 December 2004, the cadastral value of the land owned by the subsidiary SIA Preses nams is LVL 133 thousand (2003: LVL
132 thousand).

As of 31 December 2004, the subsidiary a/s Preses nams had pledged its real estate in Cesis and production equipment acquired under
financial lease confracts with the total net book value of LVL 3,403 thousand (2003: LVL 3,680 thousand) in order to secure credit
facilities from afs Latvijas Unibanka. (See Note 31 Loans from credit institutions)

As of 31 December 2004, the net book value of property, plant and equipment acquired by the subsidiary als Preses nams under
financial lease confracts amounted to LVL 4,451 thousand (2003: LVL 4,737 thousand).

As at 31 December 2004 the cadastral value of land owned by the subsidiary SIA Rigas Licis VN is LVL 812 thousand (2003: LVL 812
thousand).

During 2003 the subsidiary SIA Rigas Licis VN has temporarily ceased the construction works for the planned hospitality building in
Jurmala, It is the intention to continue these works at later stage, and therefore the unfinished building under reconstruction has been
classified as construction in progress in these financial statements (see also Note 37 Contingent liabilities). Due to the engoing
reconstruction works and the fact, that the future development plan is not set, the real estate owned by the subsidiary SIA Rigas Licis
WN is not considered as investment property for the Group.

As at 31 December 2004 the cadastral value of land and buildings owned by the subsidiary SIA Nekustamie Tpasumi VN and its
subsidiaries is LVL 4,524 thousand and LVL 1,827 thousand (2003: LVL 4,565 thousand and LVL 1,867).

The cadastral value of the subsidiary's SIA Ventspils nafta terminals real estate located at Talsu iela 75, Ventspils, as at 31 December
2004 amounted to LVL 38 thousand (2003: LVL 38 thousand).

As disclosed in Mote 31 Long term loans from credit institutions, the subsidiary's SIA Ventspils nafta terminals real estate located at
Talsu iela 75E, Ventspils, is pledged as a security for the credit line granted by als Latvijas Unibanka. As at 31 December 2004, the net
book value of pledged tangible non-current assets was LVL 6,168 thousand. Furthermore, as a security for the credit line from

als Hansabanka received by subsidiary Ventspils nafta termindls, SIA Rigas Licis VN has pledged its real estate located at Dubultu
prospekis 51, Jormala.
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14. Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

Depreciation expense have been included in the following captions of income statement:

Group Parent company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Cost of sales 11,055 14,594 . 5,669
Selling expenses 15 10 -
General and administrative expenses 388 686 62 580
Cther operating expenses 210 159 1,844 1,222
TOTAL: 11,668 15,449 1,906 7,461

Property, plant and equipment movement schedule for Parent company in year 2004 does not includes depreciation expense amounting
to LVL 1,561 thousand for fixed assets classified as available for sale as at 31 December 2004 and sold in May 2005, as well as,
depreciation expense for investment properties amounting to LVL 117 thousand.

Property, plant and equipment movement schedule for the Group in year 2004 does not include depreciation expense of investment
properties amounting to LVL 32 thousand.

15. Construction in progress and prepayments for property, plant and equipment
Group Parent company

JN22004  3N22003 N22004 31122003

Communication system reconstruction 4,732 4,188 -

Projection of main pump station at liokste 2,134 281 -

Reconstruction of oil product controlling point at Ventspils 1,802 111

Construction of new pipeline coridor 2 1,866 1,876

Reconstruction of real estate Rigas Licis in Jurmala 1,770 1,769 160 160

Projection and construction of lopping (pipeling)® 1,623 1,972 - -

Reconstruction of tank filling platform Nr. 1 & 410 410

Consfruction of railway tank filing/reloading platform Nr. 4 - 1,485 -

Other objects 572 462 - 4
TOTAL: 15,009 12,554 160 164

a) The subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals has started construction of new pipeline corridar from its reservoirs to piers of Ventspils
Free port. In 2003 the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals has temporarily ceased construction works and the management plans to
re-start construction works in 2005 as this project is included in the long-term investment plan for SIA Ventspils nafta terminals.

b) As disclosed in Note 37, the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals will have to reconstruct elevation No.1. The subsidiary
SIA Ventspils nafta terminals has ordered a technical documentation for the planned reconstruction works of railway elevation No. 1.

However, the management does not plan to commence any works before 2006 since the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls has
received permission to use existing elevation until 2006,

¢} In 2003, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans carried out designing to perform construction of looping in several stages. In 2004, the first
stage of looping construction was completed, as a result the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans can ensure oil product transportation up o
8,000 thousand tons per year. As no rapid growth in the volume of loaded oil products is planned in the next few years, the subsidiary
SIA LatRosTrans rescived to temporarily suspend further construction works of the looping. However, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans
management believes that the investments in designing of looping should not be written off as the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans is
continuously engaged in preparing an effective development strategy and the looping construction will be renewed in the future.,

Please see Note 37 Contingent liabilities for commitments for capital expenditure.
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15. Construction in progress and prepayments for property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

As of 31 December 2004 the main part of prepayments for tangible fixed assets relates to the subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans payments

to the construction company SIA Olimps for montage of an oil product controlling point amounting to LVL 2,221 thousand (2003: LVL
728 thousand respectively).

16. Investment properties
Reconciliation of the carrying amount of investment property at the beginning and end of the period:

Group Parent company
As at 1 January 2004 2003 2004 2003
Balance at the beginning of the year: 2,612 - 5,868 =
Classified as investment properties - 2612 - 5,868
Depreciation for the period (32} - (117) -
Balance as at 31 December: 2.580 2,612 5,751 5,868
Depreciation rate (straight- line) 1-10% 1-10% 1-10% 1-10%
The fair value of investment property:
Group Parent company Valuation

Fair value date
MN22004 3MM22003 31122004 3112/2003

Canference and recreation centre on Lake Usma,

Lejastiezumi, Kuldigas disctrict, Latvia - - 2,291 2,366 2292 11/01/2005
Representation house, Brigna street 3, Riga, Latvia 1,952 1,978 1,852 1.978 3,085  04/01/2005
Sports centre, Talsu street 75, Ventspils, Latvia - - am 880 854  11/01/2005
Office building, Palasta street 10, Riga, Latvia 628 634 628 B34 1,950  04/01/2008
Other - - 9 1o

TOTAL: 2,580 2,612 5751 5,868 8,181

The market values of investment properties belonging to the Parent company have been determined by valuation company SlA Biznesa
Konsultantu Grupa, Reg. No. 40003384250,
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17. Investments in subsidiaries and associated entities

The following table summarizes ownership of the Parent company and the Group in subsidiaries:

Group Parent company Legal address
Ownership (%) MM 22004 322003 MH2004 122003
Subsidiaries
Balvu street 7, LV-5043,
SIA LatRosTrans 66.00 66.00 66.00 66.00 Daugavpls, Lalvie
Als Preses nams 92.92 02,61 92.92 92,61 Bt dhucible J, LV1061,

Riga, Latvia

SIA under liquidation Mafta Doma laukums B, C450,

Holdings ; 96.00 g %.00 LV-1885, Riga, Latvia
&5 Rietumu cauru|vadu sistéma - 52.54 - 40.00 Dziﬁ:;”ts;tﬁ:iiif'amz'
SIA Rigas Licis VN 10000 100.00 10000 100.00 D“";gﬁ’;g’jﬁﬁ:ﬁ;?ﬁﬂ
SIA Nekustamie Tpasurmi VN 10000 100.00 10000 10000 Ea'a;.:‘gaa‘lj el
SIA Mediju names ¥ 0931 9928 9021 9023 e
SIA Ventspils nafta terminals 10000  100.00 10000 100.00 TE"?;?;}&;EW-

Subsidiaries of SIA Nekustamie Tpasumi VM
SIA Darfjumu centrs Daugava 10000 10000 : : Ea'a;jt:; i:;:i 9 Lv-1081,
SIA Ventspils biznesa centrs 10000  100.00 g . Bﬂ'?}:ﬂi’ﬂz B
SIA Namserviss VN 10000 100.00 : . BE‘?;‘;;"T;&; 3, LV-1081,
SlnA aﬁ::sder liquidation Maikapara 100.00 100.00 ) i Bmaﬁsit::i:ﬂz 3, Lv-1081,
SIA Lejastiezumi 10000 100,00 ; . Ba'ﬁi;fa?i‘:ﬂi3' Lv-1081,
S|A Parventas sporta centrs 100.00 100.00 - - Ba!a;jtgaarlial-r:;iiz 3, Lv-1081,

a) SIA Nekustamie Tpasumi VN is a parent company controlling six 100% owned subsidiaries. SIA Nekustamie Tpadumi VN has
prepared consolidated annual report, which was further incorporated in the Group's consolidated accounts.

b) As of 31 December 2004, afs Ventspils nafta has a 90.21% shareholding of SIA Mediju nams. At the same time, a/s Preses nams
owns 9.78% of the share capital of SIA Mediju nams. As such, the Group's ownership share is 99.31%.
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17. Investments in subsidiaries and associated entities (cont'd)
The main aclivities carried out by the subsidiaries are as follows:

514 LatRosTrans — fransporting crude cil and oil producis via pipelines;

S1A Venispils nafta termindls - reloading and storage of crude oil and oil products;

AJs Preses nams — providing printing services and publishing;

S1A Mediju nams — publishing;

514 Mekustamie Tpasumi VN - real estate management,

SIA Darfjumu centrs Daugava — real estate management;

SlA Namserviss VN- real estale management,

SlA Ventspils biznesa cenfrs— real estate management;

SIA under liguidation Maikapara nams- real estate management;

SIA Lejasfiezumi - real estate management;

514 Parventas sporta centrs — real estate management;

SlA Rigas Licis WM — recreational centre.

The following table summarizes ownership of the Parent company and the Group in associated entiies:

Group Parent company Legal address
Ownership (%) 311212004 31122003 3111212004 3111212003
Associated entities
i1 s Basteja bulvaris 2, LV-1807,
Als Latvijas kugniecToa 40,94 - 4094 . Riga, Latvia
: Balasta dambis 3, LV-1081,
SIA Mediji un Poligrafija 3270 3205 32.70 : -relphion
|. Miéurina iela 6, LV-3601,
SIA Ventshoes 21.44 21.01 21.44 ; Ventspils, Latvia
SIA Futbola kiubs Ventspils 30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00 Dzintaru streot 203, LV-

3602, Ventspils, Latvia

As described in Note 2, during 2004 the Group has reassessed intentions as to its 49.94% investment in public joint stock company
Latvijas kugnieciba. This investment has previously been considered as available-for-sale since the management intended to sell it in
near future. As such, the investment in afs Latvijas kugniectba has been classified as current asset and carried at cost because its fair
value could not have been determined. However, due to positive operating results of afs Latvijas kugnieclba it was decided to keep the
Group's significant influence and consequently the investment in a's Latvijas kugnieciba was restated in accordance with the equity
method and reclassified fo non-current investments in associated enfities.
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17. Investments in subsidiaries and associated entities (cont'd)
The following table presents carrying values of investments in subsidiaries and associated enfities:

Group Parent company
31272004 3H2/2003 31122004 3N 22003
Subsidiaries :
SlA LatRosTrans - - 83,908 86,577
SIA Ventspils nafta terminals - - 78,115 52822
Ajs Preses nams - - 13,381 12,660
S1A Rigas Licis VN - - 2163 2,304
S4 Nekustamie fpasumi VN - - 7,180 7,685
SIA Mediju nams - - 40 85
SIA under liquidation Nafta Holdings - - - 289
Als Riefumu cauruvadu sistéma - - s 7
Associated entities

als Latvijas KugniecTba 2 92,300 - 92,300
SIA Mediji un Poligrafija 56 66 56
SlIA Ventshoes a 96 81
SlA Futbola kiubs Ventspils - - - -

TOTAL: 92,437 162 227,304 162,439

a) During 2004 the Group has reclassified investment in a's Latvijas kugnieciba from current investments to non-current investments in
associated entities (see also Note 2),
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17. Investments in subsidiaries and associated entities (cont'd)

Group Parent company
322004 322003 IM22004 311212003
Balance at the beginning of the year 162 249 162,439 104,518
Acguistfions
Reclassification of investment in afs Latvijas kugniecba 2 34 945 2 34,946
Recognition of negative goodwill from acquisition of a/s Latvijas
Kugnieciba 53,585 53,585
SIA Ventspils nafta terminals 24,594 53,948
SIA Nekustamie Tpasumi VM - - 7,795
3IA Rigas Licis VN - 2,340
SlA Mediju nams 992 1,200
Als Preses nams 4 15
SIA under liquidation Mafta Holdings 2 - 17 -
Total acquisitions: 88,531 114,138 65,298
Disposal and reclassification of investment
Assets transferred from SIA under liquidation Nafta Holdings (282)
Investment in SIA Mediji un peligrafija taken over from 514 under
liquidation Mafta Holdings - B6 -
Investment in SIA Ventshoes taken over from SIA under
liquidation Mafta Holdings 96
Disposal of investrnent in SIA under liquidation Mafta Holdings (24)
Reclassification of investment in a/s Rietumu caurn|vadu sistéma
in trading investments - " (7)
Total disposal and reclassification of investment: {151)
Amortization of neqative goodwill
Negative goodwill of a/s Preses nams &0
Total amortization of goodwill: - - &0
Foreign currency franslation
als Lalvijas kugniecToa - for years 2002 and 2003 (4,854} (4,854
a/s Latvijas kugniecTha - for year 2004 (4,223) - (4,223}
Total foreign cumrency translation: {9,077) - {(9,077)
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17. Investments in subsidiaries and associated entities (cont'd)

Group Parent company
JM22004 31122003 31272004 311272003

Proportional share of profit! (loss)
SIA LatRosTrans - - {2,579) {5,561)
A5 Preses nams - - 77 B35
SIA under liquidation Nafta Holdings - - - (34
SIA Rigas Licis VN - - (151) {117}
SIA Nekustamie Tpasumi VN consolidated - - (505) (129)
SIA Mediju nams - (34) {1,047) {1,105)
SIA Ventspils nafta terminals - - 699 {1,126}
afs Latvijas kugniectba — for years 2002 and 2003 & (6,408) - (6,406) -
afs Latvijas kugniecTba — for year 2004 = 19,262 - 19,252 -
SIA Mediji un Poligrafija {10) (12) (10
SlA Ventshoes (15) {41} (15) -

Total proportional share of profit/ {loss): 12,821 (87) 9,955 {7.437)

Balance at the end of year 92,437 162 277,304 162,439

&) During 2004 the Group has reclassified investment in a/s Latvijas kugniecTba from current investments to non-current investments in
associated enfities (see also Note 2).

b} As a result of change of accounting estimate during 2004, the Group has reclassified investment in afs Latvijas kugniectba from
current investments to non-current investments in associated entiies and recognized proportional share of afs Latvijas kugnieciba
results in the 2 nd half of 2002 and 2003 (see also Note 2).

c) A significant part (LVL 11,504 thousand) of the gain from proportional share of afs Latvijas kugnieciba 2004 profits is due to reversal
ofimpairment previcusly recognized on the vessel fleet.

According fo the Auditor's Report issued by Moore Stephens (hereinafter — the Auditors), dated 24 May 2005, on the consclidated
financial statements of als Latvijas kugnieciba for the year ended 31 December 2004, in 2004 and 2003, afs Latvijas kugnieciba
overseas subsidiaries entered into a significant number of time charters with charterers, amounting to USD 32 million and USD 22
million, respectively, at the value below the market rate. Had the transactions been entered into at the market value, the Auditors had
estimated that profit for the year ended 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2003 would have increased approximately for USD 30
million and USD 5 million, respectively, and the shareholder's equity as at 31 December 2004 and 2003 would have increased
approximately for USD 35 million (LVL 18 million) and USD 5 million (LVL 2.7 million), respectively.

The Auditors also identified that in 2004 and 2003, afs Latvijas kugniectba overseas subsidiaries had entered into a number of
transactions through an intermediary company for the dry-docking and repair to a number of its vessels. The value of the transactions
entered into with the intermediary company in 2004 and 2003 amounted to USD 11 million and USD 11 million, respectively, but as
Auditors had not been provided with the original documentafion in respect of these transactions, the Auditors were not able to say
whether the ransacfions had been entered into at market rates.
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18. Loans to and receivables from related parties

Parent company
Interest
Maturity applied 3122004 311212003
MNon-current:
Receivable from subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls for purchase 311122007 BmUSD 2,350 2,350
of assets LIBOR + 1.9%
Receivable from subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals for 310032014 6muUSD - 2,094
compensation for transferred advances paid LIBOR + 1.9%
Receivable from subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals for lease of 30/06/2005  &mUSD . N
tangible fixed assets LIBOR + 1.8%
For ail lent to subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls 2 311212008 USD 2th 219 -
monthly
TOTAL: 4,541 4,755
Current:
Loan fo subsidiary S1A Rigas Licis VN Upon request 6% 263
Loan to subsidiary Mediju nams 31122005 5% 8
Loan to subsidiary SIA Nekustamie Tpasumi YN JMM212004 7% - 111
Loan to subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals 31/01/2004 % - 676
Receivable from subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls for lease of J008/2005  EmUSD T08 1,047
tangible fixed assets LIBOR + 1.9%
Receivable from subsidiary SI4 Ventspils nafta terminals for other Upaon request nfa 18 49
goods and services
Other current receivablas Upon request nia 128 133
TOTAL: 1,125 2,016

a) On 17 June 2004, the Parent company lent to subsidiary SI4 Ventspils nafta termindls 25 thousand meiric tons of crude oil which
afterwards were sold for cash. Receivable from subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta fermindls is presented according fo the actual price of
crude oil - USD 169.84 per meftric ton, totally USD 4,246 thousand. The loan bears monthly interest USD 2 thousand and it is
redeemable until 31 December 2006,
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19. Other long-term loans to corporate entities

Group Parent company
31122004 311212003 IHN22004 322003
Non-current:
Advance to SIA Parventas Siltums = 1,124 1,074
Adjustment to fair value - {229)
Other raceivables - a0 -
TOTAL: 1,124 835 -
Current:
Advance to SIA Parventas Siltums 2 42 140 -
TOTAL: 42 140 -

a) This caption includes the outstanding long-term advance to SIA Parventas siltums in the amount of LVL 1,186 thousand. This amount
is repaid by SIA Parventas siltums by supplying heat thus erasing the outstanding amount at the rate of 3.65 LVL/Mwh. The current
portion of this loan is estimated based on the subsidiary's Ventspils nafta terminals budgeted use of heat in 2005 and amounts to LVL
42 thousand. Currently, the non-current portion of the advance to SIA Parventas siltums bears no inferest. However, the management of
the subsidiary Ventspils nafta terminals has received a letter from SIA Parventas siltums stating that the 5% interest rate will be charged

on the outstanding balance of the loan starting from 2006. Based on this assumption, the balance of the loan has not been discounted in
2004,

20. Other investments

Group Parent company
Investments held to maturity IN22004 31122003 31122004 31122003
Als Ventiopaz (13.05%) 368 358
Impairment loss {359) {359)

TOTAL -

After liguidation of SIA under liquidation Mafta Holdings, all investments, including investment in als Venttopaz at zero value were
transferred fo a's Ventspils nafta.
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21. Inventories
Group Parent company
22004 AAMH2003 322004 3122003
Materials:
Materials, spare parts and low value items 1,645 1,352 - 1"
Raw materials g72 1,797 - -
Other - 1 - 1
26817 3,150 - 12
Crude il and oil products - technological balance 4,162 6,742 1,038 2.508
Crude oil and il products — available for sale 2,814 - 2414 -
Finished inventory and goods for sale 94 an - -
Unfinished inventory 265 153
Prepayments for materials 51 162
Allowance for obsolete materials and finished goods - (492} - -
TOTAL: 10,003 10,026 4,352 2,520

The value of oil and cil products included in the inventory caption includes the oil and oil products held in the technological facilities and
pipeline of the Parent company and its subsidiaries SIA Ventspils nafia terminals and SIA LatRosTrans, used to ensure oil and il
product transportation process and not intended for sale.

Crude oil and oil includes balances of crude oil and diesel held for sale and valued at market price, which is estimated at a level of
169,84 USDIt and 364.4 USDH, accordingly.

The subsidiary’s SIA LatRosTrans management has decided to write off excess losses of oil product incurred during the years 2002,
2003 and 2004 from the subsidiary’s inventory at the weighted average cost of oil products (see also Note & Other operating expenses).

22. Fixed assets for sale

According to the restructuring process the Parent company had the remaining property, plant and equipment and goodwill related to oil
and oil product reloading business. During the year 2004 the Parent company sold to subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals fixed
assets, with the net book value at 31 December 2003 of LVL 20,288 thousand and goodwill for LVL 1,425 thousand respectively. The
payment for the property, plant and equipment was capitalized in SIA Ventspils nafta terminals. Accordingly for stand alone Parent
company financial statements the assets were disclosed as current, however for Group financial statements purposes the assets are
treated as non-current (see also Note 3 Group restructuring).
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23, Trade accounts receivable

Group Parent company

INM2/2004 31122003 3NM2/2004 31122003

For printing services 2979 3,309 -
For newspapers 560 288 -
For reloading senvices 1,644 1,900 -
For fransporting of cil and il products 1.1 1,029 -
For other services 22 42 - -
Doubtful debts 1,069 1,397 - 234
Allowance for doubtful debts (1,068) (1,397) : (234)
TOTAL: 6,306 6,578 -
24, Other accounts receivable
Group Parent company
31122004 311212003 31122004 3MN22003
VAT and excise tax due from state @ 2212 1,208 - -
Provision for VAT and excise tax due from state # (1,208) - -
VAT receivable (Mote 36) 833 718 " -
Advances for services to be provided 191 44 16 44
Social security contributions 150 - - -
Deferred VAT 146 482 21 18
Personal income tax 73 a2
Mature resource tax 4 - -
Real estate tax (Mote 36) 3 4 - 4
Other accounts receivable 18 24 3 1,311
Own shares %90 a0
Doubtful debts 6,180 6,207 991 961
Allowances for doubtful debts (6,138} (6,110} (991) (961)
TOTAL: 3,684 1,511 51 1,465

a) See Note 37 Contingent liabilities,
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25. Prepaid expense

Group Parent company
o HA22004 3122003 HA22004 NN 22003
Insurance 610 1,457 44 98
Other prepaid expense 129 218 14 5
TOTAL: 739 1,675 58 103
26. Short-term loan
Group

Interest rate Maturity JM22004  MA22003

Loan to afs Latvijas Naftas Tranzits 4 554 USD '000 5% 10/07/2005 2,350 5733

TOTAL: 2,350 5,733

On 16 March 1998 the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans issued a short-term loan of USD 17,000 thousand to a significant shareholder of its
parent company. The loan, which matured on 16 March 1999, was secured by 6,000 thousand shares of als Ventspils nafta, The above
shares, with nominal value of LVL 1 each, are closed issue shares (i.e. are not publicly traded). The pledge agreement also stipulated
that the number of shares pledged might be changed if the market price of the respective shares significantly changes.

The above-mentioned loan and related collateral agreement were prolonged several times in 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004 for one
more year on the same terms whereas the collateral amount was increased. According to the respective loan agreement, the loan does
not have a fixed repayment schedule and it bears an interest rate of 5% (changed in 2002) per annum payable quarterly.

As of 31 December 2004 the balance ouistanding in respect of the above loan was USD 4,554 thousand (LVL equivalent
2,350 thousand) (2002: USD 10,596 thousand (LVL equivalent 5,733 thousand)). During 2002, the pledge amount has been increased
to 31,200 thousand shares of a's Ventspils nafta. The pledge is registerad with the Latvian Enterprise Register,

As further disclosed in the Mote 42, on 31 March 2005 a/s Latvijas Maftas Tranzits has partly repaid the loan to the subsidiary
SlA LatRosTrans amounting to USD 2,000 thousand.
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27. Trading investments

Group Parent company
22004 ANM22003 FIM22004 322003

Shares and GDR of a/s Latvijas kugnieciba (62.5 million shares and

1.5 million GDR) - 34 946 - 34,946
Shares of a/s Rietumu cauru|vadu sistéma 7 - 7 .
Cther shares 51 53 51 51

TOTAL: 58 34,999 58 34,997

During the reporting year, the management of the Parent company reconsidered the treatment of investment in als Latvijas kugniecba
from trading investment to investment in associated company. See Note 17 for adjustments made due to this change.

28. Cash and cash equivalents

Group Parent company
JMM22004 3272003 22004 31212003
Term deposits 2 5,437 7,101 78 247
Current bank accounts 1,897 1,169 1 213
Agcrued interest on deposit - 27
Cash on hand 27 33 - -
TOTAL: 7,361 8,330 79 460

a) The interest on bank account balances is accrued on the basis of floating rates established by respective banks. Short-term deposits

are made for various periods ranging from one day to one month, depending on the Company's cash requirements. Interest on shori-
term deposits is calculated on the basis of the respective interest rates applicable to short-term deposits.

Effactive interest
rate (%) Maturity 311 2/2004
Afs Latvijas Unibanka 5540  Thous., USD 2.20% ko 2.80% 3 =10 January 2005 2.859
Afs Latvijas Unibanka Thous., LVL 3.19% 31 January 2005 2,500
RIGIBID CN -
Als Hansabanka Thous., LVL 1.50%-0.25% Overnight deposits 78

TOTAL: 5,437
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29, Share capital, reserves and eamings per share

Movemenits in share capital and number of shares among shareholders may be specified as follows:

Closed emission shares, in thousands

Public
As Latvijas  Board of offering
State  nafias franzits Direclors' Own shares, in
shares shares shares shares thousands=  Total
3 December 2002 5,224 38,657 240 60 60,298 104,479
State shares purchased by als Latvijas Naftas =
i (5.224) 5,224 : : .
Shares purchased from the former Board members - - (30) an
Shares purchased by the Board members - - 60 (60) ;
31 December 2003 - 43,881 210 90 60,298 104,479
Shares purchased by the Board members - - 60 (60) - -
Shares purchased from the former and current
Board members ’ G 15 i :
Cwn shares and shares of ihe Board of Directors
conversion to public offering shares i = (%0) 210 300
31 December 2004 - 43,881 . - 60,598 104,479
HNNM212002 5.00% 37.00% 0.230% 0.060% S7.71% 100.0%
NN 22003 - 42 00% 0.201%  0086% 57.71% 100.0%
3N 212004 - 42.00% - 58% 100.0%

a) Public offering shares includes 40,346 thousand shares hold by the State and intended to be privatized, accordingly, these shares are
not available in public market.

All shares are authorized, issued and fully paid.

According to the Statutes, net result after restricted reserves and dividends is allocated to other reserves and used for further
development of the Company.

According to Latvian Law On Financial Statements of Companies, if the revaluation of investment in the subsidiary and associated entity
exceeds the paid dividends, the difference should be transferred to restricted reserve.

The Annual General Meeting of a/s Ventspils nafta shareholders in 30 July 2004 decided to cover losses for 2003 from the accumulated
profits from prior years.

As no dividends were paid by subsidiaries for year 2003, the losses for the year 2003 of LVL (9,270) thousand were transferred as
follows:

a) fransferred to restricted reserves in the amount of LVL 635 thousand;
b} transferred to other reserves in the amount of LVL (9,905) thousand.

Earnings per share for Parent are calculated by dividing the net result for the year of LVL 20,136 thousand (2003: LVL (9,270) thousand)
by weighted average number of shares during the year of 104,479 thousand {2003 104,329 thousand). Eamings per share for the
Group are calculated by dividing the net result for the year of LVL 19,213 thousand (2003: LVL (9,442) thousand) by weighted average
number of shares during the year of 104,479 thousand (2003: 104,329 thousand).

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries.

The nominal value of each share is LVL 1.
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30. Provisions
Group Parent company
As at 1 January 2004 2003 2004 2003
Balance at the beginning of the year: 80 5,628 - 3,607
{Decrease) of provisions for complated treatment works (336) - (254)
Release of the provision for pier purification (BO) {3.353) - (3,353}

Increase of the provision for piers purification 162 -
Release of provisions for oil preducts compensalion fo clients {2,081) -
Balance as at 31 December: B0

The subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls (before restructuring in 2003 - the parent company als Venispils nafta) has been loading
and reloading crude oil and oil products for more than 40 years. During this time, a significant amount of leaked oil products has
accumulated in the soil. During the last few years, the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta fermindls has implemented new fechnologies to
reduce and control the pollution level in the soil. According fo environmental regulations, the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals has
to clean ground waters completely, accordingly no provision for pier or ground purification is recognized as at 31 December 2004.
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31. Loans from credit institutions

Loan amount Effective interest rate

Non-current: {thousand) (%) Maturity 31122004 3111212003
Afs Preses nams
3 months Unibor
Loan from als Latvijas Unibanka - + 24% 28I02/2005 - a0
TOTAL: - 80
Laan amount Effactive interest rate
Current: (thousand) (%) Maturity IN22004 JN212003
Als Preses nams
3 months Unibaor
Loan from a's Latvijas Unibanka LVL 1,643 +2.4% 280212005 a0 361
3months Unibor
Loan from als Latvijas Unibanka - +2.3% 01/05/2004 - 715
SlA Ventspils nafta termindls
& month USD LIBOR
A/s Latvijas Unibanka credit line UsD 3,599 +2% 171212005 1,857 928
3 month USD LIBOR
Als Hansabanka credit line USD 5,156 +0,79% 13M12/2005 2,661 -
TOTAL: 4,608 2,004

The loan in the amount of LVL 90 thousand has been secured by a mortgage of the subsidiary's a/s Preses nams real estate in Césis

and pledge of production equipment purchased under the finance lease with the total net book value as at 31 December 2004 of
LVL 3,081 thousand (2003: LVL 3,287 thousand).

As at 31 December 2004, the subsidiary a/s Preses nams had not used a credit line in the amount of LVL 1,000 thousand.

Under the Agreement, dated 18 December 2003, and Addiional Agreement, dated 14 December 2004, signed with
als Latvijas Unibanka, the bank has granted the subsidiary SI4 Ventspils nafta terminals a credit line with the total limit of USD 3,600
thousand. As a security for the aforementioned credit line, the Company has pledged its real estate located at Talsu iela 75, Ventspils.

Under the Agreement signed with a/s Hansabanka dated 13 December 2004, the bank has granted the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta
terminals a credit line with the total limit of USD 7,600 thousand. As a security for the aforementioned credit line, SIA Rigas Licis VN, the
subsidiary of als Ventspils nafta, has pledged its real estate located at Dubultu prospeks 51, Jarmala.
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32. Financial lease liabilities

Net book
Mon-current Current value of lease
Date of Lease amount Effective interest  portion portion itemns
maturity {thousand) rate (%) {thousand) {thousand) {thousand)
3 manth Unibor
SIA Unilizings 15/01/2007 LWL 1 354 +1.95% 254 235 1,130
3 manth Unibor
SIA Uniltzings 25/06/2008 LWL 1034 +3.0% - a3 669
3 month Unibor
SI& Uniltzings 25/08/2008 LVL 693 +1.95% 39 120 582
3 month Unibor
514 Uniltzings 20i08/2008 LWL 487 +1.95% 225 B4 4m
3 month Unibor
SIA Unilizings 25/0712008 LWL 485 +1.95% 69 133 arz
3 month Rigibor
514 Vereins Leasing 010872005 LvL 159 +1.95% - 42 136
3 month Rigibor
SIA Vereins Leasing 01/08/2005 LVL 87 +1.95% - 23 67
3 month Rigibor
51A Nordea Finance Latvia 30/11/2007 LvL 94 +1.75% 52 25 6
3 month Rigibor
SlA Mordea Finance Latvia 301112006 LvL 21 +1.75% 2 3 88
Other 20 - -
Total as at 31112/2004 941 754 3,451
Total as at 31/112/2003 1,597 890 4,737
Future minimum lease payments for the above finance leases can be specified as follows:
Mon-current portion Current portion
{thousand) (thousand)
Total minimum lease payments 1,052 870
Less amounts representing finance charge (131) {116)
Present value of minimum lease payments 921 754
All lease agreements are with maturity date within five years' period.
33. Taxes payable
Group Parent company
JN22004 3122003 JN22004 31272003
Personal income tax (Mote 36) 221 130 56 13
Social security contributions (Note 36) 195 194 9 10
Real estate tax (Mote 36) B6 25 30 -
VAT payable (Note 36) 65 181 - 167
Natural resources tax 3 2 . i
TOTAL: 550 532 95 190
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34. Other liabilities

Group Parent company
3122004 322003 322004 3MM22003
Remuneration for work 543 523 29 35
Other liabilities 20 33 4 -
TOTAL: 563 556 33 35

35. Accrued expenses

Group Parent company
3202004 311212003 322004 31202003
Accrued vacation pay reserve 444 328 16 25
Accrued expenses for transit development 229 249 - -
Accrued legal expenses 227
Accrued bonuses and related social security contributions 200 72 - 3
Other accrued liabilities 377 433 122 131
TOTAL: 1,477 1,082 138 159
36, Taxes
Parent company IM212004 Calculated Paid (Refunded) I112/2003
Social security confributions (9) (116} 17 - {10)
Personal income tax {56) (171) 128 - (13)
Corporate income tax 17 (275) 840 - (548}
Value added tax " (1.172) 1,398 (48) (167}
Real estate fax (30) (127 87 (4) 4
TOTAL: (67) {1,861) 2,580 (52) (734)

Due fo the effeclive Latvian tax legislation, the corporate income tax according to a specific calculation is paid in advance. After the year
end, when the actual tax has been calculated, corporate income tax payable or overpayment is determined.

The movement of taxes calculatedipaid is prepared in accordance o Latvian legislation and the disclosure of tax movement for the
Group is not relevant.
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37. Contingent liabilities

Customs and value added tax payable

in 2002, the Customs Control Department performed an audit of the compliance of the transit procedure in the subsidiary
SIA LatRosTrans for the years ended 31 December 2001 and 2000. As a result, the authorifies imposed customs duties payable in
respect of the excise tax in the amount of LVL 635 thousand and LVL 248 thousand, for 2001 and 2000 respectively, as well as in
respect of value added tax in the amount of LVL 249 thousand and LVL 78 thousand, respectively. Therefore, the total customs duties
claim for the year ended 31 December 2001 amounted to LVL 883 thousand and for the year ended 31 December 2000 - to LVL 325
thousand. The claims for additional tax payments were made in respect of oil product losses based on the assumption that oil products,
that the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans has accounted as lost, have to be treated as subsidiary’s SIA LatRosTrans own import of ail
products released for free circulation in accordance with Law on Customs. The subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans believed that the above
amounts would be recovered, therefore they are presented in the financial statements as receivables.

The subsidiary SIA LalRosTrans challenged State revenue service decisions in the court, however, in 2004, the Republic of Latvia
Supreme Court made an adverse decision on the additional taxes calculated for 2000, The above court resolution is final and cannot be
appealed. The above mentioned receivables relating to the addifionallv paid taxes for 2000 were accordingly written off in the financial
statements for 2003. In accordance with the prudence principle, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans has established a provision for the full
amount of the taxes paid for 2001,

On & October 2004, Riga Regional Court ruled in favor of the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans regarding the additional taxes calculated for
2001, therefore the decision of the State Revenue Service should be revoked. However, Riga Regional Court recognized that the transit
procedure had been offended in respect to the portion of losses of 0.56 thousand tons considered to be sfolen, The subsidiary's

SIA LatRosTrans excise tax and VAT on the above losses payable to the Customs amounted to LVL 67 thousand and LVL 26 thousand,
respectively.

The State Revenue Service could appeal the above ruling to the Republic of Latvia Supreme Court, by submitting an appeal to Riga
Regional Court. The State Revenue Service did not exercise its rights and the above menfioned ruling of Riga Regional Court was not
appealed.

Taking into consideration the above mentioned, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans has reversed the provisions for receivables related to
the taxes paid for 2001 in amount of LVL 790 thousand and included the above amount in operating income.

In 2004, the Post-clearance Division of the SRS Latgale Regional Office Customs Board performed an audit of the compliance of the
transit procedure in the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans for the years ended 31 December 2002 and 2003. As a result, SRS imposed
customs duties payable in respect of the excise and value added taxes for 2002 in amount of LVL 757 thousand and LVL 305 thousand,
respectively, as well as 100% penalties in amount of LVL 1,062 thousand, and the excise and value added taxes for 2003 in amount of
LVL 520 thousand and LVL 204 thousand, respectively, as well as 100% penalties in amount of LVL 724 thousand. The subsidiary
SIA LatRosTrans paid all the above amounts to the state budget, meanwhile submitting a claim to a superior instance of the Sate
Revenue Service to review the above decision. According fo the resolution of the General Director of SRS Laigale Regional Office,

based on the prior ruling of Riga Regional Court on revoking debts for 2001, the above customs duty surcharges for 2002 and 2003
were revoked,

However, the General Director of SRS Latgale Regional Office recognized that the transit procedure had been offended in respect to the
portion of losses of 1.275 thousand tons in 2002 and 0.17 thousand tons in 2003 which had been considered o be stolen. Therefore the
State Revenue Service calculated excise and VAT payable for 2002 in amount of LVL 151 thousand and LVL 61 thousand, respectively,
as well as 100% penalties in amount of LVL 212 thousand, and for 2003 — LVL 20 thousand tons and LVL 8 thousand, respeciively, as
well as 100% penalties in amount of LVL 28 thousand.

The subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans could appeal the above decisions on the customs duties payable for 2002 and 2003 within 30 days as
of the receipt of the decision. The subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans management resolved against appealing the decisions of the State
Revenue Service.

Based on the above mentioned court ruling precedents, the subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans management estimated the potential taxes
payable on physical losses due to thefts for 2004 amounting to 0.268 thousand tons and established provisions for excise tax and VAT
in amount of LVL 45 thousand and LVL 31 thousand, respectively. Provisions for excise tax and VAT payable on physical losses due to
thefts for 2004 in these financial statements were disclosed under accrued liabilities caption.
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37. Contingent liabilities (cont'd)

Customs and value added tax payable (conf’'d)

On 21 August 2003, the Cabinet Regulations regarding allowable rate for wastages of transported oil products were amended to further
define the rate at 0.16%, and starfing from 1 February 2004 - 0.1%. Considering that at the moment of effectiveness of the
aforementioned amendments, the actual wastages of the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans substantially exceeded the rates defined by the
Cabinet, and namely, for the period 21 August 2003 through 31 January 2004 the wastages reached 0.75%, and for the period 1
February 2004 through the year end — 0.43%, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans might incur additional tax liabilifies, regardless of the
favorable court rulings. The subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans management believes that it is possible to prevent potential tax
consequences related to this tax risk. Therefore, in 2004, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans established a workgroup and attracted

lawyers to achieve that the respective legislation would provide different allowable wastage rates for natural losses and losses due fo
measurement errors, respectively.

Natural resource tax

In 2003, Jelgava Regional Environmental Office found that due fo SIA LatRosTrans activities the volume of unauthorized pollution
amounted fo 0.598 tons, as a result the State Revenue Service imposed natural resource tax of LVL 2 thousand, as well as penalty of
LVL 5 thousand. The subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans settled the above liabiliies and at the same fime challenged State Revenue Service
decision in court. Regional Administrative Court partially met SIA LatRosTrans claim and annulled the decision of the State Revenue
Service on imposing addifional tax and penalty fo SIA LaiRosTrans. The State Revenue Serviced appealed the above court ruling to the
Supreme Court Senate. As at the date of signing these financial statements, the date of the court procesdings had not yet been set. The
subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans management sirongly believes that the ruling will be in favor of the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans and
therefore has not recorded any provisions in these financial statements in respect of any additional taxes.

Environmental commitments

The subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans dealing with pipeline transportation of crude oil and cil products is exposed to a major ecological risk of
unexpected leakage of crude oil and oil products both as a result of technical damages of pipelines and unauthorized connections. Since
1887, SIA VentEko performs liquidation of the consequences of unexpected leakages from crude oil and oil product pipelines Palotsk —
Ventspils and Polotsk — MaZeikai in the territory of the Republic of Latvia on behalf of SIA LatResTrans. To ensure qualitative services
compliant with environment protection requirements and to minimize ecological risk related not only to the pollution of environment but
also to considerable financial losses from penalfies, SIA VentEko has developed an investment plan envisaging an implementation of
such environmental sirategy which would ensure that SIA LatResTrans operations comply with all the standards stated in the Latvian
environmental legislation, and the adverse impact on environment caused by oil leakages is limited to the maximum exient possible. The
plan alzo foresees that SIA LatRosTrans makes investments in improving environment of pumping stations, thus considerably reducing
potential losses, including unexpected natural resource taxes, expense related to solving unexpectsd environmental issues, and
minimizing ecological risks in all objects. According to SIA VentEko estimates, the implementation of such investment plan would cost
LVL 1 392 thousand, which would include liquidafion of the consequences of unexpected leakages in the main oil product pipeline
network, monitoring and recovery of the histarical pollution of Idkste pumping station caused by various technical problems, as well as
identification and localization of more recent pollutions caused by various technical problems, and general measures for minimizing and
monitoring ecological risks.

The subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals (and previously as Ventspils nafta) has been reloading crude oil and oil products for more
than 40 years. During this time, a significant amount of leaked ol products has accumulated in the soil. During the last few years, the
subsidiary 51A Ventspils nafta termindls has implemented new fechnologies to reduce and control the pollution level in the soil.
According to environmental regulations, the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termin&ls has to clean ground waters completely. However,
this could only be done by reconstructing the existing elevations No. 1 and 2, as these are comparatively old and worn-out constructions

occasionally permitting leakages of crude oil and oil products. The estimated total cost of the planned reconstruction works is LVL 22
million.

After accession of the Republic of Latvia into the European Union, according to the International Convention for the Prevention of
Pollution from Ships, till 2005 the lawgivers have to develop and the Parliament {Saeima) has to adopt regulatory documents to define
detailed resfrictions as to the release of volatile organic compounds from transit fuel terminals. Consequently, SI& Ventspils nafta
terminals will have to invest funds into construction of a new vapour recovery system to comply with the requirements of the
aforementioned International Convention. According to approximate estimates, investments inte construction of the recuperation
equipment might reach LVL 6.0 million.
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37. Contingent liabilities (cont'd)

Commitments for capital expenditure

As at 31 December 2004, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans had entered into general agreements on construction works amounting to
LVL 88,244 thousand (2003: LWL 73,784 thousand), providing that the construction works will be carried out in several stages. The
subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans is entitled to renounce the agreement prior to the commencement of the next construction stage.

Total commitments for capital expenditure under contracts in the Group as of 31 December 2004 are LVL 6,483 thousand (2003:
LVL 8,992 thousand).

Group Parent company
_ 22004 311212003 HMZ2004 31122003
Concluded contracts 20,33 19,806 - -
Prepayments made (7.512) (5,154} - -
Finished works {6,336) (5,660 - -
TOTAL: 6,483 8,992

The general agreements signed by the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans comprise commitments in the amount of USD 54,482 thousand (LVL
28,113 thousand) (2003: LVL 29,475 thousand) o SIA Baltijas InZenierblve for the design and construction of a pipeline looping. The

construction is planned to be carried out in several stages, and the costs for 2005 are planned for the amount of USD 5,288 thousand
(LVL 2,734 thousand).

The subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans is updating its long term investment plans so that it would be able to fulfil cash outflow obligations
related to the consequences in relation to excessive oil product losses, if any.

On 13 August 2003 the subsidiary SIA Rigas Licis VN has signed an agreement with SI4 Skonto Bdve on the reconstruction works for
hospitality building in Jurmala. According to the agreement the total value of recanstruction works amounts to LVL 3.9 million, The
agreement provides for penalties amounting to 10% from confract value payable to construction company in case of termination of the
agreement. At the end of 2003 reconstruction works have been temporary ceased with the approximate value of unfinished consiruction
works of LVL 3.4 million. At the beginning of 2005 the subsidiary SIA Rigas Licis VM has reached an agreement with SIA Skonto Bove
that current liabilities to SIA Skonto Bive contains only regular invoices and no penalties are calculated.

Payments to local authoritles

Under the agreement between 5IA Ventspils nafta terminals and Ventspils City Council dated 19 September 2003, on fransportation of
oil and oil products via Ventspils city, and supplementary agreement thereto, dated 8 December 2003, SIA Ventspils nafta terminals
undertakes to transfer the following amounts to Ventspils City Council to safisfaction of the city's social infrastructure needs:

a) in 2004 - LVL 700 thousand plus the amount not exceeding 1% of the forecasted net turnover of SIA Ventspils nafta terminals for the
respective year,

b) in years 2005, 2006 and 2007: LVL 700 thousand each year, plus amount not exceeding 1% of the forecasted net fumover of
SIA Ventspils nafta terminals for the respactive year.

Litigation

The subsidiary SIA Mediju nams is involved in several litigation processes regarding slander admitted in its publications. The major are

the claim of Amolds Laksa amounting to LVL 100 thousand and the claim of Andris Mitkus where the claimed compensation amounts to
LVYL 150 thousand.
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37. Contingent liabilities (cont'd)

Minimum technological reserve

The subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals has calculated that, based on the current level of operations, the minimum technological
reserve of crude oil and oil products needed to be kept in the reloading network is as follows: 37 000 tons for crude oil, 46 500 tons for
diesel fuel and 25 300 tons for gasoline. As at 31 December 2004, the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals owns rather insignificant

amounts of oil preducts and 4 545 tons of crude oil intended to cover liabilities to als Ventspils nafta for borrowed crude oil (see Note
18).

Thus, in the current circumstances crude oil and oil products owned by its clients and a/s Ventspils nafta are used as a part of minimum
technological reserve needed for reloading network. The total minimum technological reserve owned by other parties amounts to
approximately 32 500 tons of crude oil, 46 500 tons of diesel fuel and 25 300 tons of gasoline. The approximate cost of acquiring the
minimum technological reserve of crude oil and oil products for the reloading network to operate using entirely the subsidiary’s
SIA Ventspils nafta terminals own resources is esfimated at LVL 12,520 thousand.

The subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans has calculated, that the minimum technological reserve of oil products needed for the oil product
transportation network amounts to 87,400 tons. As of December 2004 the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans owns 21,933 tons (2003: 41,449
tons) of oil product, Thus, currently products owned by its clients are used as a remaining part of minimum technological reserve of oil
products needed for the transportation network amounting to 65,467 tons (2003: 45,951 tons). The approximate cost of restoring the
minimal reserve of oil products used as technological reserve for the ol product fransportation network entirely on the own resources is
estimated in the amount of LVL 17,185 thousand using an average market price at 3 May 2005 of LVL 262.51/ ton (USD 479.9/ ton)

38, Off balance sheet assets

As Ventspils nafta shares

As of the date of signing this annual report the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans held 31,200 thousand shares of als Ventspils nafta as
security for the loan issued to a significant shareholder of the Parent company. The above shares, with a nominal value of LVL 1 each,
are closed issue shares (i.e., are not publicly traded). The pledge is registered with the Latvian Enterprise Register (see also Note 26).

Qil technological surplus

To ensure a successful oil transportation process, the oil pipeline has been filled with 150 thousand tons of oil (36 thousand tons in
Polocka-MaZeikai direction and 114 thousand tons in Polocka-Ventspils direction). The above volume of oil is nat presented in the
subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans accounting.

39. Pipeline operations

In 2004, the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals have operated under continuous impact of adverse external pressure, mainly
imposed by the administrative resolutions of the Russian oil piping menopoly Transneft and the Russian Federal Energy Commission.
The aforementioned resolutions were aimed at not allowing Russian oil exports via Ventspils transit corridor and directing of as much

exports as possible via Primorsk oil terminal owned by Transneft. Due to the aforementioned reasons no ol transportation via pipelines
has been preformed in the last two years.
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40. Related party transactions

In providing and receiving the services from the related parties the pricing policy of the Group is the same as the transactions would
have been performed with third parties,

For the purpose of these financial statements, the enfiies that are part of the afs Ventspils nafta Group, i.e., SIA Ventspils nafta
termindls, SIA LatRosTrans, als Preses nams, SIA Mediju nams, SIA Rigas Licis VN, and, SIA Nekustamie Tpasumi VN and its
subsidiaries SIA Darumu centrs Daugava, SIA Namserviss VN, SIA Ventspils Biznesa Cenirs, SIA Maikapara nams, SIA Parventas
Sporta Centrs and SIA Lejastiezumi, associated companies als Latvijas Kugnieciba, SIA Mediji un Poligrafija, SlA Ventshoes are
considered to be related enfities of the Parent company. In addition, significant shareholders of a/s Ventspils nafta i.e. afs Latvijas naftas
tranzits and its significant shareholder afs Ventbunkers, including its subsidiaries and associated enfities, and the state of Latvia are
considered related parties to the Group.

As is described in Note 286, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans has issued a loan to a major shareholder of als Ventspils nafta - als

Latvilas naftas tranzits. During the reporting the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans has recorded interest income for the afs Lalvijas naftas
tranzits loan in the amount of LVL 193 thousand (2003: LVL 483 thousand).

Based on a co-operation agreement concluded between subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls, a/s Ventbunkers and SIA LatRosTrans
on reloading diesel fuel, revenues were generated for SIA Ventspils nafta termindls in the amount of LVL 1,102 thousand (2003 LVL
260 thousand and LVL 675 thousand for as Ventspils nafta).

During the reporting year subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls has been charged LVL 430 thousand (200:3: LVL 136 thousand and
LVL 765 for afs Ventspils nafta) by afs \Ventbunkers for freatment of technological waste water.

During the reporting period subsidiary SIA Venispils nafta termindls has been charged LVL 743 thousand (2003; LVL 137 thousand and
LVL 841 thousand for a's Ventspils nafta) by a/s Ventbunkers for utilization of piers rented by a's Ventbunkers,

During the year ks Ventbunkers logisfika kis charged subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls for railway and information services in
aggregate amount of LVL 788 thousand (2003: LVL 156 thousand and LVL 1,352 thousand for als Venispils nafta). Accounts payable to
ks Ventbunkers logistika kis per subsidiary's SIA Ventspils nafta terminls accounts as of 31 December 2004 amounted to LVL 77
thousand (2003: LVL 67 thousand).

Curing the year subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls has charged ks Ventspils ekspedicija logistika KS for reserving, transporting
and reloading of oil and oil products for the amount of LVL 10,301 thousand (2003: LVL 1,445 thousand and LVL 13,390 thousand by

als Ventspils nafta). Accounts receivable from ks Ventspils ekspediciia logisika KS per subsidiarys SIA Ventspils nafta terminals
accounts as of 31 December 2004 amounted to LWL 1,508 thousand.

Curing the year subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls has been charged LVL 355 thousand (2003 LVL 24 thousand and LVL 375
thousand for als Ventspils nafta) by SIA Vats for electricity. Accounts payable to SIA Vats per subsidiary's SIA Ventspils nafta terminals
accounts as of 31 December 2004 amounted to LVL 21 thousand {2003: LVL 30 thousand)

During the year subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls has been acting as intermediary between SIA Ventspils Ekspedicija, that is a
related party to als Ventbunkers and one of Parent company's major clients Transoilsystems (UK) Lid. for transportation of oil by
pipefine from Polocka to MaZelkl. The total amount of invoices received from SIA Ventspils Ekspedicija and re-charged to
Transoilsystems (UK) Lid. for 2004 amounted to LVL 5,787 thousand (2003: LVL 1,598 thousand and LVL 5,029 thousand by als
Ventspils nafta). The intermediary fransaction is not included in the Group's turnover. Accounts payable to SIA Ventspils Ekspedicija per
subsidiary's SIA Ventspils nafta terminls accounts as of 31 December 2004 amounted to LVL 517 thousand {2003: LVL 560 thousand).

Curing the reporting year the subsidiary S1A LatRosTrans has performed transactions with SIA Ventspils ekspedicija that was a major
customer of the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans. Accounts receivable from SIA Ventspils ekspedicija per the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans
accounts as of 31 December 2004 amounted to LVL 1,071 thousand (2003; LVL 1,026 thousand). The total turnover with SIA Ventspils
ekspedicija during the reporting year was LVL 12,338 thousand (2003: LVL 12,932 thousand).

Based on the security agreement concluded between the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans and SIA Venta (a subsidiary of as Ventbunkers),

the subsidiary SI& LatRosTrans has been charged for security services rendered by SI4 Venta in the amount of LVL 850 thousand in
2004 (2003: LVL 850 thousand).
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41. Financial instruments

The main financial instruments of the Group are issues/ received short-term loans, cash and short-term deposits, finance leases. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to ensure the financing of the operations of the Group. The Group also deals with several

other financial instruments, which are a result of its operations, for example, frade accounts receivable, other debtors, frade payables
and other payables.

Financial risks
The main financial risks related to the financial instruments of the Group are credit risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.

Credit risk

The Parent company and the Group is exposed to credit risk through trade receivables, long-term and short-term loans and cash and
cash equivalent. The Group's cash equivalents have been invested in highly secure financial institutions.

As of 31 December 2004, the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals credit risk concentration to a single customer — related party
amounted to 100% of total trade receivables (2003 76%)

As of 31 December 2004, the subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans credit risk concentration to a single customer — related party amounted to
100% of total trade receivables (2003: 99.7%).

The subsidiaries afs Preses nams and SIA Mediju nams manage its credit risk by continuously assessing the credit history of customers
and assigning credit terms on individual basis. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that the
subsidiaries’ a's Preses nams and SIA Mediju nams exposure to bad debts is minimized. The subsidiaries a/s Preses nams and

SlIA Mediju nams have no significant concentration of credit risk with any single customer or group of customers having similar
characteristics.

Fareign currency risk

The Group's financial assets and liabilities exposed to foreign currency risk comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
prepayments for construction works, short-term loans, trade payables, long ferm loans payable to financial institutions and leasing
companies.

A significant part of the revenues of the oil and oil products segment are derived in U.S. dollars, whilst the major part of expenses is in
Latvian Lats. In order to manage its foreign currency risk, the subsidiaries balances the currencies of short-term and long-term

borrowings with the currencies of future cash flows from operations and enters into contracts on substantial capital invesiments and
services in U.S. dollars,

The Group does not use any financial instruments to manage their exposure to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed fo the interest rate risk, mainly through its liabilities to financial institutions and leasing companies and short term
loan issued to significant shareholder of the Parent compary.

The management believes that he exposure fo interest rate risk of financial assets and liabiliies as of 31 December 2003 was minimal
as their deviation from their respective fair values was not significant.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by arranging an adequate amount of committed credit facilities with banks and parent company,
planning of terms of payment of trade payables, developing and analyzing future cash flows comprising both the existing and planned

loans and interest on such loans. The budgeting system, which is being successfully applied by the Group, is of areat use for liguidity
risk management and confrol.

To prevent and minimize the liquidity risk, the Group is planning permanent cost reduction by moadifying the Group's structure, as
appropriate. Besides, the issue of re-financing of current liabilities into non-current liabiliies is being solved,

Risk analysis and designing of risk management plans are conducted at the top management level,
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41. Financial instruments (cont'd)

Fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities not carried at fair value — cash, accounts receivable, other
accounts receivable, loans issued and received, frade accounts payable and other payables are camied at amortized cost which
approximate to their fair value.

The management of the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls has performed impairment test for all intangible and tangible non-
currents assets as at 31 December 2004. The impairment test was performed under assumption that all intangible and tangible non-
currents assets are considered to be a single cash generating unit. Other main assumptions used in the impairment test are as follows:
&) Discount rate is 19%;

b} Inflation rate for expenses is 3% per year;

¢} Crude oil received by railway in 2005 will increase by 47% comparing with 2004;

d) Based on the information currently available in the market, starting from 2006 the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals plans to
derive income from reloading of crude il received via pipeline. Currently reloading operations via pipeline are stopped due to political
situafion as described in Note 39,

Based on the above assumptions, the management of the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals has calculated net realizable value of
all intangible and tangible non-currents assets fo be LVL 110 415 thousand.

42. Subsequent events

In January 2005, the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta termindls concluded an agreement with the Parent company afs Ventspils nafta on a
credit line with the limit of USD 760 thousand. The credit line matures on 10 December 2005 and interest rate is 6 month USD LIBOR +
2%,

On 24 January 2005, an application for registration of SIA Maikapara nams, the subsidiary of SIA Nekustamie Tpadumi VN, liquidation
was submitted to the Commercial Register of the Republic of Latvia. Maris Smilts and Andris Uzulens were appointed as liquidators.

On 3% March 2005 als Latvijas Naftas Tranzits has parily repaid the loan to the subsidiary als LatRosTrans amounting to USD 2,000
thousand.

In the period from 1 January 2005 to 30 April 2005, the subsidiary SIA LatRosTrans incurred losses of oil products during the
transportation, which exceeded the rate for wastages agreed with the clients (from 1 February 2004 - 0.1% of total transported volume)
by approximately 3.9 thousand tons.

As at the date of signing these financial statements, the State Revenue Service had transferred part of the subsidiary's SIA LatRosTrans
debt paid to the state budget in amount of LVL 222 thousand to value added tax receivable.

Except for the above as of the last day of the reporting year through the date of signing these financial statements there have been no
significant events requiring adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto.

43. Going concern of the subsidiaries

As at the year-end, the subsidiary's SIA Ventspils nafta terminals current liabilities exceed current assats by LVL 4,134 thousand.
According to the estimates of the subsidiary's SIA Ventspils nafta terminals management, operating income of 2005 is expected to
exceed operating expenses by LVL 803 thousand. Consequently, the management believes that the positive cash flow from operating
activities would be sufficient to ensure financing to solve liquidity problems. If the existing situation persists, the subsidiary SIA Ventspils
nafta terminals would require additional financial support from the Parent company a/s Ventspils nafta. A/s Ventspils nafta have
provided a letter of financial support confirming that it will provide the subsidiary SIA Ventspils nafta terminals with additional financing
for continuing its operations in the foreseeable fulure, if necessary.

SlA Mediju nams closed the year 2004 with the loss of LVL 1,161 thousand, and had negative cash flows from the operating activities.
Current liabilities exceeded current assets by LVL 60 thousand. Substantial losses are as well budgeted for the year 2005. The
management of SIA Mediju nams believes that with continuation of its operations, development of the existing and establishment of new
publishing issues, the cash fiow in 2005 can be improved. However, the above mentioned factors require additional sources of financing.
According to the estimates of S1A Mediju nams management, the company would require additional financing for its further operations,
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Als Ventspils nafta, the sole shareholder of SIA Mediju nams, has confirmed in its letter of support dated 13 April 2008, that it will
provide the adequate financing to SIA Mediju nams to ensure continuation of its operations at least until 30 July 2006.

Since 2002, the subsidiary a/s LatRosTrans has incurred substantial losses due to physical losses of oil products and due to the
decision of AK Transneft to suspend transportation of crude oil to Ventspils terminal through the subsidiary's als LatRosTrans pipeline.
The management and the Council of the subsidiary a/s LatRosTrans believe that the current situation is temporary and are taking
actions aimed at renewing the delivery of crude oil to Ventspils terminal and also to reduce excessive physical losses of oil products and
related tax consequences

The subsidiary SIA Nekustamie Tpaumi VN and its subsidiaries closed the reporting year with loss of LVL 505 thousand. According to
the estimates of the subsidiary's SIA Nekustamie fpadumi VN management, after the liquidation of the SIA Maikapara nams in 2005, the
balance due in the amount of LVL 302 thousand will be reversed, along with taking over the properties of SIA Maikapara nams and
reversal of a respective share of investments. Therefore, the management of the subsidiary SIA Nekustamie Tpasumi VN believes that
the positive cash flows from operations will be sufficient to ensure adequate financing for liquidity purposes.

The subsidiary SIA Rigas Licis VN closed the year 2004 with the loss of LVL 151 thousand and current liabilities exceeded current
assets by LVL 549 thousand. To solve this issue, the subsidiary need a financial support. On 30 December 2003 the subsidiary SIA
Rigas Licis VN signed loan agreement with as Ventspils nafta for the loan of LVL 600 thousand, interest rate of 6% per annum and
repayable on demand. The management of the subsidiary SIA Rigas Licis VN believes that this loan will solve liquidity issues.

59



